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Energizer Holdings. inc. is a consumer goods company operating globally in the broad categories of housenoid and personat dare
products. The Household Products Division gives consumers the broadest range of portable power soluiions, anchored by the universally

recognized Energizer® and Eveready® brands, plus speciaity batterias, Enargi To Go® chargers and a cormplete line of battery-powergd

ffashlights and lantems, The Personal Care Diision offers a diversified range of consumar products in the wet shave, skin care, fe
care and infant carg cateyories with well-estailished brand names such s Schick® and Wilkinson Swort® men's and women's si aving

systems and disposable razors; Playtex® tampons, gloves and infant feeding products: Banana Boat® and Hawaiian Tropic® sun care
products; and Wet Ones® moist wipes. With commercial and production operations in 48 countries and distribution in ancther
countries, the company markets its products throughout most of the world. Energizer is tracied on the NYSE under the ticker symbol ENR.
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Ward M. Klein, Chief Executive Officer

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

OUR BIGGEST CHALLENGE AND GREATEST ACCOMPLISHMENT IN FISCAL
2008 HAS BEEN BRINGING PLAYTEX PRODUCTS ONBOARD AND FUSING
PLAYTEX WITH SCHICK TO FORM A NEW PERSONAL CARE DIVISION.

AS PART OF THAT EFFORT, WE HAVE FUNDAMENTALLY TRANSFORMED
ENERGIZER INTO A MORE BROADLY BALANCED, STRATEGICALLY
DIVERSIFIED COMPANY THAT DELIVERS BRANDS FOR LIFE ... AN ARRAY
OF CONSUMER PRODUCTS THAT MAKE LIFE SAFER AND MORE ENJOYABLE,
HEALTHIER AND MORE LIVABLE.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For 1he fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, Energizer Holdings’ net earnings rose to $329.3 million,
including a $16.5 milllon expense related to the write-up of inventory purchased in the Playtex acquisition,
from $32 1.4 million the year before, and earnings per diluted share reached $5.59, including $0.28 for the
Playtex inventory write-up, compared with $5.51 the prior year. Net sales last year climbed to a record $4.3
billion, fueled by the addition of Playtex together with organic growth across our existing businesses.

Focus on shareholder value. As a company, we remain committed and focused on improving long-term
shareholder value, emphasizing consistent, sustainable growth in earnings per share. While earnings per
share growth last year was constrained as we absorbed the cost of integrating Playtex and reinvested in the
company to set the stage for future growth, our compounded annual growth rate for the eight and a half
years since our 2000 spin-off is 14.7 percent.

Over that same period, cash fiow generated has been directed primarily toward acquisitions and share
repurchases. We invested $2.8 billion to acquire Schick-Wilkinson Sword (SWS}) and Playtex Products,
businesses which logether accounted for $1.9 billion or 43 percent of sales last year. Opportunistically
repurchasing shares when we believe they are well undervalued, we also have invested approximately
$2 billion to buy back 48 percent of the original shares outstanding at an average price of $42.72.

Last year, we focused our use of cash flows to strengthen our balance sheet and pay down the debt
incurred in the acquisition of Playtex. Our debt structure remains solid and in compliance with existing credit
agreement covenants. By fiscal year-end, we successfully reached our goal of reducing our debt/EBITDA
ratio to below 3.5:1, eliminating the interest rate surcharge, reducing debt and interest expense, and
providing greater flexibility going forward.
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Stock Price Performance 8400
Comparison of Curmnulative Total Return on
$100 invested in Energizer Hokdings, Inc. on $300
Septermbeer 30, 2003, versus the 5&P 400
and the S&P Househod Products indices
through September 30, 2008, including $200
reinvestment of dividends,
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ENERGIZER TRANSFORMED

Energizer continues to evolve, growing from a $1.7 billion battery company to a $4.3 billion diversified
consumer products company with the acquisition of SWS in 2003 and Ptaytex in 2007. Our diluted earnings
per share has climbed from $1.88 in fiscal 2000 to $5.58 in fiscal 2008. Where we operated in a single
category, we now compete in five major product categories - and within those categories, we hold the

No. 1 or No. 2 U.S. market share position in 12 distinct sub-categories. Comprised of strong brands and
competitive market positions, our businesses share similar customers and distribution channels.

Energizer has been dramatically and materially transformed - since our 2000 spin-off, as well as from
just 12 months ago. Today, our two-division arganizational structure gives us a new, more efficient platform
for growth and enables us to focus on exploring and executing innovations across more categories than
ever before.

INTEGRATION OF PLAYTEX

Playtex Products became part of Energizer on October 1, 2007, and throughout the fiscal year, we worked
diligently to forge the new Personal Care Division, effectively bringing together the SWS and Playtex
organizations. During the year, we integrated various Playtex corporate functions including information
technology, human resources, accounting and legal, eliminating duplicate activities and reducing overall
headcount. In addition, we consclidated sales and sales support under a Personal Care sales force
structure, moving the new group into a commen office facility, and grafted Playtex’s order-to-cash, logistics
and distribution activities onto the Energizer Holdings platform. By fiscal 2008 year-end, the integration was
substantially complete, and we achieved synergies of approxdmately $14 milion, net of integration costs,
for the year. We estimate that we will realize 357 million of synergies in fiscal 2009 and uttimately expect to
achieve approximately $70 million annually.

Much more than simply a cost-cutting exercise, the integrated organization gives us a greater footprint
in customers' stores and consumers’ homes, plus opportunities to improve our go-to-market efficiencies
and efiectiveness. The combined Personal Care business has achieved critical mass in North America,
going from just over $400 rmillion in sales to more than $1.1 billion, while delivering significant economies of
scale. And with over 90 percent of Playtex sales generated in North America, we remain enthusiastic about
opportunities to strategically expand the Playtex product ling internationally through our existing global
distribution and commercial structure.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Household Products Division, consisting of our battery and lighting products businesses, accounted for
57 percent of company sales and 60 parcent of profits in fiscal 2008. The Personal Care Division, including
our wet shave, skin care, feminine care and infant care segments, contributed 43 percent of sales and
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Subcategories

Household Batteries —\

l Specialty Batteries

Lighting Products

Men's Shavirgg Systerns

WET SHAVE I Women's Shaving Systems
1

BATTERIES & LIGHTING

gun Ca.ree Sravers U.S. Market Share Position

Latest 52-week data

SKIN CARE Hands and Face Towelettes
Household Gloves
Tampons
Botties and Cups

Disposable Diaper Systems

FEMININE CARE
INFANT CARE

40 percent of profit. We have a similar geographic balance, with 49 percent of sales and 57 percent of
profits currently generated outside the United States. Global in scope, we maintain commercial and
production operations in 49 countries and sell our products in over 180 countries around the world.

HOUSEROLD PRODUCTS :

The Household Products Division faced significant challenges during the year. In particular, historically high
prices for raw materials including zinc, nickel and manganese cre, which translated into increased costs
totaling approximately $60 million for fiscal 2008. In addition, we experienced lower volumes due primarily
to global economic sluggishness that has impacted batiery sales throughout most of the developed world,
These impacts were partially offset with price increases, improved product mix from our performance batter-
ies, cortrolied promotional spending and cost reductions from our continuous improvement program based
on LEAN concepts. ldentifying and eliminating non-value added activities in our battery group, we improved
productivity 45 percent over the last four years — with batteries produced per operations associate climbing
from 1.1 million to 1.5 million. Based on that success, we are continuing to roll out this behavioral philosophy
to other areas of the company.

Today, Energizer is uniquely posilioned to meet the growing demand for portable power with the
industry’s most comprehensive portfolio of battery technology - designed to let consumers select the right
battery that not only fits the device but also their festyle. Using this broad portfolio, we successfully employ
a trade-up strategy to drive top-line growth. In less developed world markets, we encourage trade-up from
price batteries to premium batteries; in more developed markets, where growth of high-tech devices is
particularly strong, consurmers are increasingly trading-up from premium batteries to performance batteries.
This shift is clearly reflected in our sales ~ performance batteries accounied for 57 percent of the division's
net sales growth over the last three years and premium batteries gerierated 34 percent of growth, while less
profitable price batteries declined 8 percent. We have achieved similar success via trade-up in lighting
products, with that business accounting for 11 percent of net sales growth over the same period.

Performance batteries. Sales of performance batteries grew 19 percent last year, driven by our continued
leadership in lithium and rechargeables, which best address the high-drain power needs of high-tech devices.

Sales of lithium batteries continue to grow in excess of 25 percent per year, led by our original Energizer®
Ultimate Lithiumn, the world's longest-lasting AA and AAA batteries in high-tech devices - enhanced to now
last up to eight times longer in digital cameras cormpared to Energizer® Max®*. Employing a new segmented
approach to lithium, we recently launched Energizer® Advanced Lithium as a lower-cost option designed to
introduce consumers to lithium technology and performance.

To meet this aceelerating demand, we doubled the production capacity at our Vermont lithium plant
twice since 2004, but have now outgrown that facility. During the year, we began construction of a second
lithium manufacturing site in Singapore, where we have had a production presence for many decades.

*Resutts vary by camsra.



MEETING THE GROWING PORTABLE POWER
NEEDS OF CONSUMERS IN EVERY CORNER OF
THE GLOBE, OUR HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS

DIVISION DELIVERS THE INDUSTRY

MOST COMPREHENGSIVE PORTFOLIQ

OF HOUSEHOLD AND SPECIALTY
BATTERIES. LEADING THE SHIFT TO
ADVANCED L.E.D. TECHNOLOGY,
OUR BATTERY-POWERED
LIGHTING PRODUCTS
TRULY SHINE IN USE
AT HOME, AT WORK
AND OUTDOORS.
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Energlzer® Max®* i
Energizert Max®, the latest Energizer,
generation of our popular o
Tlagship efkalne brand,
delivers dependable,
tong-lasting power for the
devicas consumers use
datty = from toys and
gamas 1o flashlights,
rarnote controls and

Energizer® Zero
Mercury™

More than two years
ahead of the industry
commiment to diminate
mercury from button cell
bateries, Energizer has
begun replacing its current
high-performing hearing
aid batteries with ogually

Weather Ready®
Lantern

Part of a hard-working

Hine of preparedness/emer-
gency lights, the Enengizer®
Weather Ready® 100 Hour
LED Area Lantern boasts
12 LEDs to light an entire
room for over three weeks
on a single set of batteries,

based on five hours of Lse
per day using Energizer®

|
|
smoka detectors. performing Energizer®
Zero Mercury™, the
workd's tirst mercury-free afkaline batteries.
hearing aid battery.
This facility will give us an altemative half way around the globe to provide advanced lithium batteries to the

rest of the world as we develop that business. We anticipate the plant will be in production by the end of 2008.
Energizer® Rechargeable® remains the top-selling brand in nickel-metal hydride round cell batteries with
leading-edge rechargeable technology and a broad range of innovative charging solutions.

Premium and price batteries. Premium batteries account for over half of category sales, and our flagship
Energizer® MAX® alkaline batteries boast strong brand equity and deliver dependable, long-lasting power for
everyday devices like flashlights, calculators and basic television remotes. Our price batteries — Eveready®
carbon zinc and Eveready® Gold® alkaline — provide value-conscious consumers with affordable, reliable
performance in less-demanding devices.

Specialty batteries. Energizer offers a broad line of specialty batteries designed for small electronic
devices such as hearing aids, walches, calculators, cameras, toys and more. Nearly two decades after
Energizer becarme the first manufacturer o remove mercury from household batteries and after extensive
davelopment and testing, we recently introduced mescury-free hearing aid batteries in the U.S. market.
Better for consurmers and the environment, Energizer® Zero Mercury™ hearing aid batteries offer high
performance equal to the batteries they replace.

Lighting products. Battery-operated flashlights and lanterns are increasingly migrating from traditional
incandascent bulbs to LED technology, and Energizer continues to lead this shift. We offer a full range of
innovative lighting solutions, including our popular headlight line that allows users to keep their hands free
and focused on their activity. The new high-intensity, Energizer®1 Watt Headlight delivers a bright viewing
field with a 1-watt white LED spot, flood light with two white LEDs and night vision with two red LEDs.
Reflecting our trade-up strategy, the average unit price of our lights has doubled since 2001.

PERSONAL CARE
With established brand names across a diverse array of consurner products, the Personal Gare Division
significantly contributed to company growth and profitability last year. Following a consistent strategy of
innovating to drive consumer trade-up, expanding geographic distribution and minimizing overhead to fund
advertising and promotion, SWS sales surpassed the $1 billion milestone last year, fueled by 18 percent
“combined sales growth for the Quattro® and Intuition® franchises. Since acquiring the wet shave business
in 2003, we have expanded SWS sales from approximately 80 countries te 140 countries today, with sales
climbing from $625 million to nearly $1.1 billion in fiscal 2008. Founded over 75 years ago, Playtex Products
introduced its popular living gloves in 1954, followed by its first infant feeding product in 1960 and its first
plastic applicator tampon in 1968. With sales exceeding $770 million in fiscal 2008, Playtex today offers
consumers a broad portfolio of leading brands in the infant care, feminine care and skin care categories.



SUCCESSFULLY FUSING OUR
SCHICK-WILKINSON SWORD

BUSINESS AND RECENT

PLAYTEX ACQUISITION INTO
A NEW PERSONAL CARE
DIVISION, WE OFFER CON-
SUMERS A PORTFOLIO OF
RECOGNIZED, RESPECTED
BRANDS ACROSS A RANGE
OF CATEGORIES — FROM WET
SHAVE, SUN AND SKIN CARE,
TO FEMININE HYGIENE AND
INFANT CARE AND FEEDING.
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Quattro® Titanium “Sj % Intuition® Plus® Quattro® for Women®
Trimmer Y Refreshing Moisture

The first anc only razor
that shaves, edges and
trims, the innovative
Schick® Quattro® Titanium

Trimmer features a buik-in,

battery-powered trimmer
in the waterproof handle.

The upgraded Schick®
Intuition™ Plus® Refreshing
Moisture with cucumber
melon scent shaves and
conklitions in cne easy
step with increased grip
area for better control
and improved pivating for
easier shaving in hard-
to-reach areas.

Modified for a woman's
curves while retaining
the advanced features
of the men’s version, the
Schick® Quattro® for
Women® is tha Tirst four-
blade, high-performance
razor for women. Dual
conditioning stips with
aoe and vitaming E and BS
provide skin-smaoothing

comiort and glide.

Men’s and women’s wet shave. In the first quarter of fiscal 2008, we strengthened our Schick® Quattro®
franchise with the introduction of an upgraded base blade cartridge that provides an incredibly close shave
with lass initation than previous Quattro® cartridges. The improved cartridge features smaller spaces between
each blade for less irritation and moveable blades that adjust to the contours of the face for maximum contact
of blades to skin. The next-generation premium Quattro® Titanium, also launched in the first quarter, features
titanium-coated blades that stay sharp longer, a newly added edging blade for improved precision in harder-
to-reach areas and a lighter, ergonomically designed handle for better control.

During the second quarter, we began rolling out the new Quattro® Titanium Trimmer, the first and only
razor that shaves, edges and trims in one convenient system. An adjustable, stainless-steel, battery-powered
trimmer built into the waterproof handle combines with a high-efficiency compact motor to deliver the
functionality of a much larger trimmer.

The Quattro® for Women® incorporates advanced Quattro® technology in the first four-blade high-
performance razor for wornen. The zinc alloy handle offers a substantial feel and high degree of contral,
coupled with a soft-rubber no-slip grip. Quattro® for Women® cartridges contain aloe and vitamin E for
exceptional comfort and glide.

tn February 2008, we launched the Schick® Intuition Plus® Refreshing Moislure with Cucumber
Meton scent, replacing the original Intuition® Cucumber Melon line. The improved razor features a more
comfortable handle with increased grip area for better control and enhanced pivoting to make shaving in
hard-to-reach areas easier.

With the second-quarter introduction of two new disposable razor offerings, we now compete in all price
segments of the fast-growing disposable razor market. Qur existing line-up included the Quattra® Disposable
and Quattro® Disposable for Women, Xtreme 3% Comfort Plus® and the Exacta 2 Slim Twin® ST®. Launched in
select markets outside the United States, the new Exacta 3 product is an entry-level, triple-blade disposabile
designed to facilitate faster trade-up from twin-blade users. Schick® 2, positioned as a close, comfortable
shave from a trusted manufacturer at an affordable price, is our new segment offering for consumers in
emerging markets.

Skin care. Playtex’s skin care business has enjoyed steady growth with a boost from the sun care category
growing at a compounded annual rate of 8 percent over the last three years, driven by increased consumer
awareness of the sun's damaging effects.

After successfully integrating Hawaiian Tropic and Banana Boat sales and marketing functions, we are
adapting a broad range of Banana Boat packaging innovation to Hawaiian Tropic. New Banana Beat® Ultra
Defense™ offers superior protection with patented AvoTriplex™ technology and moisturizing components
of aloe vera and vitamins A and E. Banana Boat® Sport Dri-Blok™ Continugus Spray is ideal for intense
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Banana Boat® and
Hawaiian Tropic®
Sun Care Products

New Banana Boat® Ultra
Defense™ Continuous
Clear Spray protects and
hydrates with patented
AvaTaplex™ technology
and meisturizing aloe vera
and vitamins A and E.
Formulated with exotic
botanicals and extracts,
newy Hawaiian Tropic® Dry

Playtex® Plastic
Applicator Tampons

Playtex® Gentle Glide with
360° design for all-around
cornfort and Playtesx®
Sport™ with spert-level
protection and comfort are
designed especially for the
active lifestyles of today's
women,

Playtex® Drop-Ins® and
VentAire? Bottle Systems

Addressing consumer
concerns and contusion,
Playtex offers a broad
range of BPA-fres feeding
and soothing options,
inctuding the Playtex®
Brop-Ing® Nurser System
with disposabie liners
and the reusable Playtex®
VentAire® Advanced
Bottle System.

Gil Continuous Spray goes
on clear with quick and
easy coverage.

sports — and it dries in seconds so your grip won'’t slip. Banana Boat® is the No. 1 tear-free sunscreen for
babies and kids. These formulas are mild, pediairician-tested and gentle on children's delicate skin while
providing broad-spectrum UVA and UVB protection.

Wet Ones® Moist Wipes, the dominant U.S. category leader, recently introduced substantial product
improvements including a stronger fabric, enhanced non-sticking moisturizing formula and tapered canister
packaging to fit standard car cup holders.

Feminine care. Playtex’s plastic applicator tampon business - led by Playtex® Gentle Glide® with 360°
protection and all-around comfort and Playtex® Sport™ with high-performance protection and comfort for
active young women — has grown at a compound annual rate of 2.6 percent over the last three years.

infant care. As a leader ininfant care, Playtex will be providing parents with a full line of bisphenol-A
{BPA)-free products. At the end of fiscal 2008, over 80 infant feeding and scothing products were BPA-free,
identified for consumers with a special BPA-free logo on the: packaging.

The BPA-free Playtex® Drop-Ins® Nurser System, featuring pre-sterilized, disposable liners that collapse
as baby feeds, has been clinically shown to help reduce gas, colic and spitting up while supporting baby's
natural feeding rhythm. In October 2008, we launched the BPA-free version of the clinically superior Playtex®
VentAire® Advanced Bottle System. This version is made of clarified polypropylene, a durable and translucent
plastic. Only Playtex® VentAire® Advanced reusable bottles have micro-channel vent technology that, unlike
ordinary bottles, vents air at the back of the bottle versus through the nipple. This helps prevent air from
mixing with the milkk and provides a virtually bubble-free feeding. Angled bottle design supports a semi-upright
feeding position recommended by pediatricians to help prevent ear infections.

A pioneer in the spill-proof cup market, Playtex has added a new Twist ‘N Click feature to many of its
spout and straw cups for infants and toddlers, including the new LiI" Gripper™ and The Insulator™ lines.
Twist 'N Click allows parents to feel, see and hear the cup seal with a reassuring “click” and know that it
is 100 percent spill-proof, leak-proof and break-proof, guaranteed. Recent innovations in baby pacifiers
include the Ortho-Pro® Teether, dentist-designed for pinpoint pressure relief; the Ortho-Pro® Pacifier with
Snap 'N Clean™ sterilizing cover that kills 92.9 percent of bacteria; and the Binky® Silicone One-Piece
Pacifier, designed for safety and comfort.

We recently introduced the new Playtex® Diaper Genie Ii Elite™ Advanced Disposai System, proven
iNo. 1 in odor control for the freshest smelling nursery with an easier-to-use ergonomic, taller design and
foot pedal for hands-free disposal.



Free Your Skin™

In the latest series of print ads for
Schick® men's and women's shav-
ing systems and dispesable razors,
rough and smooth images {sand-
paper/silk, cracked earthvwater) am
juxtaposed to visually emphasize the
Frea Your Skin™ campaign thems.

Playtex® Diaper
Genie |! Elite™

Proven No. 1 in odor
control with antimicrabial
protection buitt into the
plastic to inhibit odor-
causing bacteria, the
next-generation Diaper
Gerve Il Eite™ Advanced
(heposal Systemincludes
new features that make
diaper changing more
hygienic and easier

than ever.
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LEADERSHIP CHANGE

Energizer is fortunate to have a seasoned, talented team of executives, managers and associates across
the company and an outstanding Board of Directors. We want to acknowledge Bill Stiritz's retirernent from
the Board in May and thank him for his many years of leadership and guidance to this company, first as
CEO of our former parent, Ralston Purina, then as Chairman of Energizer Holdings and, most recently, as
Chairman Emeritus.

COUTLOOK

Fiscal 2008 has been a year of refugling our long-term business initialives, sustaining the momentum alreadly in
place and fortifying a solid platform for future growth. Despite our strong brands and stable organization, we
cautiously face a highly uncertain macroeconomic environment in 2009 marked by significant currency and
raw material headwinds.

Battery sales in the United States and other developed markets remain sluggish, and we estimate residual
LLS. retall inventory from hurricane-refated shipments combined with the level of early holiday shipments will
dampen our sales by an additional $30 milkon beyond any negative underlying retail consumption. Commodity
and other inflationary input costs are expected to be unfavorable $60-$70 million in fiscal 2009 compared to
last year, offset by previously initiated pricing actions, manufacturing cost reduction programs and incremental
gynergies from the Playtex acquisition. The recently strengthened U.S. doliar will negatively impact profit across
our businesses, and we estimate foreign currency devaluation will be unfavorable by $125-$140 million in
2009 using exchange rates as of November 17, 2008.

This combination of factors makes it unlikely that we will achieve our earnings per share growth target
of 10 percent in fiscal 2009 and, at existing currency rates, even holding earnings flat will be difficult.

Despite these challenges, we are well positioned for long-term growth across our product portfolio
around the globe and remain commitied to prudently investing in our businesses, where appropriate. We
will continue to focus on strengthening our position in markets and categovies in which we compele, delivering
innovative solutions to our retail customers and consumers, and creating long-tenm shareholder value.

RN (/N

WARD M. KLEIN

Chief Executive Officer '
Energizer Holdings, Inc.
November 26, 2008
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financia! Condition

Dollars in millions, except per share and percentage data)

The following discussion is a summary of the key factors management
considers necessary in reviewing Energizer Holdings, Inc.’s (the Company)
historical basis resultts of operations, operating segment results, and licuid-
ity and capital resources. The Company repors results in two segments:
Household Products, which includes batteries and lighting products and
Personal Care, which includes wet shave, skin care, feminine care and
infant care products. This discussion should be read in conjunction with
the Consolidated Financial Staterents and relatad notes.

HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS OVERVIEW

Energizer is ona of the world's largest manutfacturers and marketers of
batteries and lighting products, competing primarily in the retall batiery
and the battery-operated lighls categories. We define the retail battery
category as household batteries (alkaline, carbon zinc, fithium and
consumer replaceable rechargeable) and specialty batteries {miniature
and photo). We market a complete line of household batteries with
two primary brands, Energizer and Eversady, which are well known
throughout the world.

Alkaline batteries are the predominant household battery chemistry

in developed parts of the world, while carbon zinc batteries continue

1o play a significant yet declining role in kess devaloped countries
throughout the world. Recently, higher power, higher priced lithium and
rechargeable batteries have grown in response o more demanding power
neads of more advanced devices. The Company is well positioned to
meet consumers’ household battery needs with a comprehensive porifolio
of battery technology to meet a wide variety of device power require-
ments, In less developed markets, the Company encourages trade-up
from value priced batteries to premium batteries; in more developed
markets, where power needs are greater, consumers are increasingly
trading-up from premium batteries to performance batteries.

Battery-operated flashlights and lanterns are increasingly migrating
from traditional incandescent bulbs 10 LED technology, a shift that
has been led by Energizer. The Company offers a full range of lighting
solutions, including the headlight line, which allows users to keep their
hands free and focused on their activity. As with batteries, the Com-
pany has focused on a trade-up strategy to migrate consumers

to higher performance lights with higher retail price points.

Energizer operates 19 manufacturing and packaging facilities in 12
countries on four continents. ks products are marketed and sold in
more than 165 countries, primarily through a direct sales force, and
also through distributors and wholesalers.

The battery category is highly competitive as brands compete for
consumer acceptance and retail shelf space. Unit growth had been
positive for many vears, but unit volume declined on a year over year
basis in 2008 coincident with a slowdown in consumer spending in
most developed markets. We believe household battery volume growth
has also been dampened by an increasing number of new devices
powered by built in rechargeable hattery systems. Despite these
factors, category value has grown faster than units in recent years as
consumers trade up to higher performing batteries, at the expense of
lower value batteries. Additionally, pricing actions in response to rising

material costs has raised retail prices. Pricing actions are: not ahways
available to fully offset material cost increases, especially in highty
competitive markets.

Offsetting trade-up and pricing has been a shift by consumers to larger
package sizes, which sell at lower per unit prices, The impact of current
economic conditions, new device trends and migration to larger pack-
age sizes on overall category value is difficult to predict at this time.

Energizer is well positioned to mest the needs of customer and consumer
demands, leveraging category expertise, retalt understanding and its
portfolio of products to give Energizer a strong presence «cross the retall
channels, Energizer estimates its share of the total U.S. retail battery
category was approximately 39% in 2008 and 2007 and 37% in 2006.

A significant portion of Energizer's product cost is more closely tied to
the U.S. dollar than to the local currencies in which the product is sold.
As such, a weakening of currencies relative to the U.S. dollar results

in margin declines unless mitigated through pricing actions, which are
not always avaiable due to the competitive environment, Conversely,
strengthening of currencies relative to the U.S. doltar can improve
margins. This margin impact coupled with the translation of foreign
operating rasults to the U.S. dollar for financial reporting purposes

has an impact on reported operating profits. In the last fow months,
the U.S. dollar has strengthened considerably versus moest foreign
currencies. At November 17, 2008 foreign currency exchange rates,
we estimate the impact to segment profit due to currency transiation
to be approximately $100 to $110 unfavorable for Household Products
as compared to the 2008 average currency transtation rate, Changes
in the value of local currencies in refation to the U.S. dollar will continue
to Impact reporied sales and segment proditability in the future, and the
Company cannot predict the direction or magnitude of future changes.

PERSONAL CARE OVERVIEW

The Personal Care segment includes wet shave products sold under
the Schick and Witkinson Sword brand names, skin care products sold
under the Banana Boat, Hawaiian Tropic, Wet Ones and Playtex brand
names, and Feminine Care and Infant Care products sold under the
Playtex and Diaper Genie brand names.

SCHICK-WILKINSON SWORD

Schick-Wilkinson Sword (SWS) is the second largest manutacturer and
marketer of men's and women’s wet shave products in the world. SWS
operates four manufacturing faciities wordwide and its products are sold
in more than 140 countries. its primary markets are the U.S., Canada,
Japan and the targer couniries of Westermn Europe, SWS estimates its
overall share of the wet shave category for these major markets at
approximately 209 in 2008 and 2007 and 21% in 2006.

Grabally, SWS products hold the number two market position in the wet
shave products category, with one competitor accounting far a substan-
tial majority of global wet shave sales. All ather competitors constitute a
small minority of category salkes. Category blade unit consumption has
been relatively flat tor a number of years. However, product innovations
and corresponding increased per unit prices have accounted for category
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growth. The category is extremely competitive with competitors wing for
consumer loyalty and retail sheff space.

A significant portion of SWS's product cost is closely tied (o the U.S,
doflar and the euro. As such, SWS results are highly sensitive to fluctua-
tions in other currencies, particularty Japan, where the Compary holds a
significant market share position. Strengthening of curmencies compared
to the U.S. dolar, and t0 a lesser extent to the euro, improves margins
while weakening of such currencies reduces margins. This margin impact
coupled with the transtation of foreign operating results to the U.S. dollar
for financial reporting purpeses has an impact on reported operating
profits. At Novernber 17, 2008 foreign currency exchange rates, we
estimate the impact to segiment profit due 1o currency transiation o be
approximatety $25 to $30 unfavorable for Personal Care as compared
to the 2008 average cumency fransiation rate. As with the Household
Products business, changes in the value of local currendies in redation to
the U.S. doller and, to a lesser extent, the euro will continue to impact
reported sales and segment profitability in the future, and the Company
cannot predict the direction or magnitude of future changes.

ACQUISITION OF PLAYTEX PRODUCTS, INC. {PLAYTEX)

On October 1, 2007, the Company paid $1,875.7 for the acquisition
of all outstanding Playtex common stock, repayment or defeasance
of outstanding Playtex debt, and other transaction costs. Playtex
operaies six manufacturing and packaging facilities in the U.S. Playtex
is a leading Nerth American manufacturer and marketer in the skin,
ferminine and infant care product categories, with a diversified portiolio
of well-recognized branded consumer products.

In Skin Care, Playtex markets and sells sun care products under two
waell known brand names, Banana Boat and Hawaifian Tropic. Combin-
ing Banana Boat and Hawaiian Tropic, Playtex holds the number one
doltar market share position in the U.S. sun care category. The sun care
category in the U.S. is segmentad by product type such as general
protection, tanning and babies; as well as by method of application
such as jotions and sprays. Playtex competes across this full spectrum
of sun care products. In addition, Playiex owns the number one market
share position in the U.S. hands and face wet wipes category with its
Wet Ones brand and the number one dollar market share position for
branded U.S. household gloves with its Flaytex household gloves.

In Feminine Care, Playtex selis tampon products under the brand
names Playtex Gentle Glide and Playtex Sport, both of which are plas-
tic applicator tampons. In the tampon category, consumer purchases
are driven primarily by protection, comfort, quality and value. For more
than 20 years, Playtex has been the second largest selling tampon
brand in the U.S. and maintains a leadership position in the higher
growth plastic applicator segment. The tampon category in the U.S,
has becoms more competitive in recent years inctuding substantial
new product innovation and increased levels of promotional activity.

The Infant Care product category includes U.S. dollar market share
leading infant feeding products marketed under the Playtex brand
name and the U.S. dollar market share leading diaper disposal system
marketed under the Flaytex Diaper Genie brand name. [nfant feeding

products include disposable feeding systems, plastic reusable hard
bottles, cups and a full line of mealtime products such as plates,
utensils and placemats. The Diaper Genie brand consists of the diaper
pail unit and refill iners. The refilt liner individually seals diapers in an
odor-proaf plastic film.

As noted previcusly, Playtex is primarily a North American business.

The Company intends to leverage its existing international selling and
distribution infrastructure io expand the intemational presence of cer-
tain Playtex brands, with initial efforts centered on sun care products.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended September 30, 2008, net eamings were $329.3, or
$5.59 per diluted share, compared to net earnings of $321.4, or $5.51
per diluted share, in 2007 and net earnings of $260.9, or $4.14 per
diluted share in 2006.

Fiscal 2008 results included:

® an after-tax expense of $16.5, or $0.28 per diluted share, related
to the write-up and subsequent sale of inventory purchased in the
Playtex acquisition,

m integration and other realignment costs of $13.4, after-tax, or $0.22
per diluted share, and

# a net, unfavorable prior year income tax accrual adjustment of $1.1,
or $0.02 per diluted share.

Fiscal 2007 results included:

a favorable adjustments of $21.9, or $0.37 per diuted share, related
to a reduction of deferred tax balances and prior years' tax accruals
and previously unrecognized tax benefits from prior years' foreign
losses, and

m charges of $12.2, after-tax, or $0.21 per diluted share, for the
company's European restructuring projects.

Fiscal 2006 results included:
m charges of $24.9, after-tax, or $0.39 per diluted share, related to
European restructuring programs,

m acharge of $3.7, after-tax, or $0.06 per diluted share, to record the
cumulative amount of foreign pension costs that should have been
previously recognized, and

» favorable adjustments to prior years' tax accruals and previously
unrecognized tax benefits related 1o foreign losses of $16.8, or
$0.26 per diluted share.

For the fiscal year, the inclusion of Playtex’s results and incremental
interest expense associated with the financing of the acquisition reduced
diuted earmnings per share by $0.24, which includes a charge of $0.28
related 1o the inventory write-up and $0.19 related to acquisition inte-
gration costs. Excluding these one-time costs, Playtex was accretive
to Energizer's aarnings in its first year post-acquisition.
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OPERATING RESULTS

Net Sales Total net sales for fiscal 2008 were $4,331.0, an increase
of $965.9, or 28%, due primarily to the acquisition of Playtex, which
added $771.7 to net sales for the year. Net sales increased $98.0

in Household Products and $96.2 in SWS. On a constant currency
basis, net sales increased $811.0 as compared to 2007, again due to
the acquisition of Playtex, Net sales in 2007 increased $288.2, or 9%,
in absolute dollars and $212.7, or 7%, on a constant currency basis
compared to 2006.

Gross Profit Gross profit dollars were $2,037.7 in 2008, an increase
of $433.0, or 27% due primarily to the addition ot Playtex, which
added $375.2 to gross profit. The 2008 increase includes favorable
curency of $121.6. In 2007, gross profit dollars increased $123.9 with
increases in both businesses.

Gross margin percentage was 47.0% of sales in 2008, 47.7% in 2007
and 48.1% in 2006. The margin percentage decline in 2008 is due
primarity 1o higher year over year product costs. The margin percent-
age decline in 2007 is due primarily to lower margin in our Household
Products segment, also driven by higher material costs. See Segrnent
Results for further discussion.

Seliing, General and Administrative Selling, general and administra-
tive expenses (SG&A) were $794.0 for 2008, an increase of $166.1
due primarily to the acquisition of Playtex. As a percent of net sales,
SG&A was 18.3%. down 0.4 percentage points from the 2007 total.
SG&A increased $26.0 in 2007 due to currency impacts of $15.0

and higher spending in Household Products, partially offset by lower
restructuring charges as compared to 2006. As a percent of net sales,
SG&A was 18.7% for 2007 as compared to 19.6% in 2006.

Advertising and Promotion Advertising and prometion {A&P) increased
£91.6 in 2008 due to the acquisition of Playlex, which added $112.3 to
A&P for 2008, ASP increased $26.3 in 2007 with increased spending in
the Household Products segment and currency impacts of $9.6.

AP expense was 11.2%, 11.7% and 12.0% of sales for 2008, 2007
and 2006, respectively. In addition tc the impact that accompanies a
major acquisition, AAP expense may vary from year to year with new
product launches, strategic brand support initiatives and the overall
competitive environmens.

Research and Development Research and development {R&D)
expense was $81.7 in 2008, $70.7 in 2007 and $74.2 in 2006. The
expense in 2008 includes $19.9 for Playtex, which represents the
magjority of the increase. As a percent of sales, R&D expense was
2.1% in 2008 and 2007 and 2.4% in 2006.

Segment Results In the first quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company
revised ils operating segment presentation. Operations for the
Company are managed via two segments - Household Products
(battery and lighting products) and Personal Care (wet shave, skin,
feminine and infant care). Segment performance is evaluated based

on segment operating profit, exclusive of general corporate expenses,
share-based compensation costs, costs associated with maost
restructuring, integration or business realignment activitios and amor-
tization of intangible assets. Financial iterns, such as interest income
and expense, are managed on a global basis at the corporate level.
This structure is the basis for the Company's reportable operating
segment information presented in Note 18 to the Consolidated
Financial Staternents.

The reduction in gross profit associated with the write-up and subse-
quent sale of the inventory acquired in the Playtex acquisition and the
acquisition integration costs for the Playtex acquisition are not refiecied
in the Perscnal Care segment, but rather presented below segment
profit, as they are non-recurring items direcily associated with the
Playtex acquisition. Such presentation reflects management's view on
how it evaluates segment performance.

The Company’s operating model includes a combination of stand-
alone and combinad business functions between Househaold Products
and Personal Care, varying by country and region of the world. Shared
functions include product warehousing and distribution, various trans-
action processing functions, and, in some countries, a combined sales
force and management. Such allecations do not represent the costs
of such services if performed on a stand-alone basis. The Company
applies a fully allocated cost basis, in which shared busiress functions
arg allocated between the businesses.

Household Products

2008 2007 2008
Net sales $2,474.3 $2,376.3 32,1471
Segment profit $ 489.1 $ 4723 $ 4423

For the year, sales increased $98.0, inclusive of $88.1 favorable cur-
rency transtation. Absent currencies, sales increased $9.9, as favorable
pricing and product mix were partially offset by lower sales volume.
Soft overall category demand in most of the developed world was
nearly offset by sales to meet hurricane demand and early holiday sea-
son buy-in within the U.S. and volume growth in Central and Eastern
Europe and Latin America, Overall pricing and price mix was favorable
$15.8 as list price increases taken to offset rising material costs were
partialty offset by sales shifting to larger pack sizes, which sell at lower
per unit prices.

Gross margin increased $40.2 for the year, but declined $34.7 absent
the favorable impact of currencies. The benefit of higher pricing was
move than offset by unfavorable product cost of $63.2, due primarily to
higher commodity material costs and unfavorable production volumes.

Segment profit incroased $16.8 but declined $34.8 due to the lower
gross margin noted above after excluding favorable currency impacts.
Excluding currency impacts, higher SG8A expenses were neary offset
by lower AP spending.



ENERGIZER HOLDINGS, INC. 2008 Annual Report 13

For the year ended Septernber 30, 2007, sales increased $229.2, or
11%, due primarily to favorable pricing and product mix of $68.5 and
higher sales volume of $111.5. In addition, curency was favorable by
$49.2 as compared to the prior year. Fiscal 2007 benefited from price
increases implemented in both 2006 and 2007 in response to signifi-
cant increases in material costs. Energizer MAX unit sales were (lat

in North America, which reflected soft volume in the overall premium
alkaline battery segment of the category, partially due to virtually no
hurricane-related consumption. Volume growth reflected increased unit
shipments in lithium and rechargeable batteries primarily in the more
developed markets.

Gross profit dollars increased $82.8 in 2007 as higher sales anct
favorable currency were partially ofiset by higher product costs, due
primarily 1o the increased cost of zinc. Currency contributed $41.6 of
favorability to gross profit as compared to the prior year. Product cost
in 2007 was unfavorable S83.3 compared to 2006, as material cost
increases exceeded the favorable impact of other cost reductions.

Segment profit increased $30.0, or 7% in 2007, but was essentially fiat
on a constant currency basis as higher gross profit was partially offset
by higher advertising, promotion and selling expenses.

Looking forward, the battery category continues to be soft in the U.S.
and other developed markets. In addition, we estimate residual U.S.
retail inventory from hurricane-related shipments combined with the
level of early holiday shipmients will darnpen the Company’s sales by
an additional $30 in fiscal 2009 beyond any negative underlying retail
consumption or competitive activity. By comparison, sales in last year's
December quarter were unusually high relative to retai consumption,
which resufted in a significant retafl inventory reduction in the March
2008 quarter.

Commodities, raw materials and other infiationary input costs are
estimated to be unfavorable $35 to $40 in 2009 compared to 2008
average costs based on current market conditions. Pricing actions
already initiated tagether with manufacturing cost reduction programs
should offset these increases.

Finally, as mentioned previously, the U.S. dollar has recently strength-
ened against most other currencies, which will negatively impact
reported salas and profits in Household Products, At Novernber 17,
2008 foreign currency exchange rates, we estimate the impact on
segment profit dug to currency translation to be approximately $100
to $110 unfavorable for Household Products as compared to the
2008 average currency translation rate,

Personal Care
2007
2008 pro lomma
Net sales $1,856.7 $1,694.1
Segment profit $§ 3225 $ 2712

As noted in Energizer's quarterly filings during 2008, Energizer's acqui-
sition of Pltaytex was completed on October 1, 2007; therefore, Playtex
is not included in the attached historicat financial statements prior to
the current fiscal year. To provide a clearer understanding of the impact
of the acquisition on results, the comparison of the 2008 results for the
Personal Care segment are versus unaudited pro forma results for the
year ended September 30, 2007 as shown in Note 3 of the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements. Hawaitan Tropic resuits are included in the
pro forma resutts in Note 3 beginning on April 18, 2007, the date at
which Playtex acquired the business. The comparative for fiscal 2007
versus fiscal 2006 remains a historical comparisen of the SWS wet
shave business, which constituted the Personal Care business prior 1o
the addition of Playtex in 2008.

Net sales for the fiscal year were $1,856.7, an increase of $162.6,
with Hawailan Tropic and favorable currency accounting for $54.6 and
$66.8, respectively, of the increase. As noted above, Hawalian Tropic
is not included for the full year in the 2007 pro forma comparison.

On a constant currency basis, net sales increased 6% due primar-

ity to Weat Shave and the acquisition of Hawaiian Tropic. Wet Shave
sales increased 3% as higher volumes in disposable razors and the
Quattro family of products more than offset declines in older technol-
ogy products and unfavorable pricing and product mix due to higher
promotional spending in all categories. Skin Care net sales increased
22% due to the inclusion of Hawaiian Tropic. Excluding the impact of
Hawaiian Tropic, Skin Care net sales increased 5% driven by growth
in Banana Boat. Feminine Care net sales decreased 1% due {o the
discontinuation of the Beyond cardboard applicator tarmpon in 2007
partially offset by growth in plastic applicator tampons. Sales of plastic
applicator tampons increased 3% for the year, Infant Gare net sales
were essentially flat as higher sales of Diaper Genie and the dispos-
able Drop-in product were offset by a decline in sales of reusable infant
bottles as the company transitioned to BPA-free products.

Segment profit increased $561.3 for the fiscal year dus, in part, to
$22.0in favorable currency. The prior year includes the impact of the
write off of Beyond fixed assets of $10.4. Excluding this write off and
the impact of currencies, segment profit increased $18.9 as gross
margin on higher sales and lower A&P were offset by higher overheads
and product costs. The Company estimates that segment profit was
favorably impacted by approximately $17 of synergies related to the
Playtex acquisition.

Wet Shave sales in 2007 increased $59.0, including $26.3 of favorable
currency impacts. Initial launch sales of new products in the prior year
were approximately $26 compared to approximatety $52 in the same
period in 2006. Absent currency and initial product launches, sales
increased 6%, as Quattro branded systern products contributed $40
of sales growth, disposables contributed $32 and Intuition contributed
$14 partially offset by lower sales of older technology products.

Segment profit for Wet Shave increased $27.8 in 2007, on $16.4 of
contribution from higher sales, favorable currency of $3.8, and lower
SGEA and R&D expenses, Lower SG8A reflects the cost savings from
the European restructuring. R&D expense declined $3.7 due to the
inclusion of a large, discrete R&D project expense in 2008,
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Looking forward, similar to Household Products, commodities, raw
materials and other inflationary input costs for Personal Care are
estimated to be unfavorable $35 to $40 in 2009 compared to 2008
average costs based on current market conditions. Pricing actions
already initiated together with manufacturing cost reduction programs
and incremental synergies of approximately $32 from the Playtex
acquisition should more than offset these increases.

Finally, as noted previously, the U.S. doltar has recently strengthened
against most other currencies, which will negatively impact reported
sales and profits in Personal Care, At November 17, 2008 foreign
currency exchange rates, we astimate the impact on segment profit
due to currency transtation to be approximatety $25 to $30 unfavorable
for Personal Care as compared to the 2008 average cumrency
translation rate.

General Corporate and Other Expenses
2008 2007 2008
General Corporate Expenses $ 838 $ 933 $ 87.0
Integration 17.9 - -
General Corporate Expenses
with Intagration 101.7 93.3 87.0
Restructuring and Related
Charges 3.2 18.2 374
Forgign Pension Charge - - 4.5
General Corporate and Other
Expenses $104.9 F1115 $128.9
% of total net sales 2.4% 3.3% 4.2%

General Corporate and Other Expenses For the year, general
corporate expenses, including integration costs increased $8.4,

as $17.9 of Playtex integration costs were partially offset by lower
compensation expenses. The Company estimates that approximately
$14 of tavorable synergies were achieved at, or shorly after, the
acquisition date via a reduction of Playtex corporate expenses includ-
ing executive and stock related compensation and public comparry
costs. However, the savings had no impact on the year over year
comparative as the costs were not included in the Company’s current
year or historical results. The Playtex integration efforts will continue
into 2009, but integration costs are expected to be much lower than
in 2008. Fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 included $3.2, $18.2 and $37.4,
respectively, of restructuring and realignment costs associated with a
project o improve the effectiveness and reduce costs of the Compa-
ny's European packaging, warehousing and disiribution activities.

General corporate expenses increased in 2007 compared to 2006 dug
to higher stock-based compensation, partially offset by lower project
related costs.

See Note B to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further inior-
mation on restructuring activities.

Interest and Other Financing ltems Interest expense for the fiscal
year increased $90.1 on higher averaga borrowings resulting from
the Playtex acquisition. Other financing items, which includes interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses from the Company’s
worldwide affiliates, were unfavorable $25.2 for the fiscal vear due

primarily to exchange losses in the current period compared to
exchange gains last year and lower interest income of $3.4. These
exchange losses were offset by currency gains in segment profit.

Interast expense increased $13.3 in 2007 as compared to 2006 due
to higher average bormowings resulting from share repurchases and
higher interest rates. Other financing expense was favorabie $15.8in
2007 compared to 2006, due to higher interest income of $11.0 and
currency exchange gains in 2007 compared to currency exchange
fosses in 20086,

Income Taxes Income taxes, which include federal, state and forsign
taxes, werg 30.4%, 26.0% and 26.8% of eamings before income taxes
in 2008, 2007 and 2008, respectively. Income taxes include the follow-
ing iterns which impact the overall tax rate:

a Adjustments were recorded in each of the three years to revise
previously recorded tax accruals to refiect refinement of estimates
of tax attributes to amounts in filed returns, settiemerit of tax audits
and certain other tax adjustments in a number of jurisdictions. Such
adjustments increased the income tax provision by $1.1 in 2008
and decreased the income tax provision by $7.9 and $10.9 in 2007
and 20086, respectivety.

m Atax benefit of $11.0 was recorded in 2008 associaled with the
write-up and subsequent sale of inventory acquired in the Playtex
acquisition.

m In 2007 and 2006, $4.3 and $5.7, respectively, of tax benefits
related to prior years' losses were recorded. These banefits related
to foreign countries where our subsidiary subsequently began to
generate earnings and could reasonably expact futurs profitability
sufficient 1o utilize tax loss carry-forwards prior to expiration,
Improved profitability in Mexico in 2007 and 2006 account for
the bulk of the benefits recognized.

m Legislation enacted in Germany in August 2007 redused the tax rate
applicable to the Company's subsidiaries in Germany for fiscal 2008
and beyond. Thus, an adjustment of $9.7 was made to reduce
deferred tax liabilities in fiscal 2007.

Excluding the items discussed above, the income tax percentage was
30.9% in 2008, 31.0% in 2007 and 31.5% in 2006.

The Company's effective tax rate is highly sensitive to country mix, from
which earnings or kosses are derived. Declines in earnings in lower tax
rate countries, earnings increases in higher tax rate countries, increas-
es in repatriation of toreign earnings or operating losses in the future
could increase future tax rates. Additionally, edjustments to prior year
tax accrual estimates could increase or decrease future tax provisions.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Operating Activities Cash flow from operations is the primary funcing
source for operating needs and capital investments. Cash flow from
operations was $466.5 in 2008, an increase of $21.2 from 2007. Cash
tlow from operations was $445,3 in 2007, an increase of $72.3 from
2006, Each of these year over year changes was due to improved
operating cash flow before changes in working capital.
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Working capital, which is defined as current assets less current
liabilities was $665.1 and $888.5 at September 30, 2008 and 2007,
raspectively. The year over year working capital change reflects the use
of $261.0 of cash to complete the Playtex acquisition. As adjusted ta
reflect the Playtex acouisition, accounts receivable increased $39.4 at
September 30, 2008 due to higher sales in the fourth quarter of 2008.
Inventories decreased $28.5 as the inventory step-up related to the
Playtex acquisition flowed through earnings as the inventory was sold.
Current liabiliies decreased $22.8 due primarily to payments related
o exit and contract termination costs for Playtex as part of the
integration plan.

Investing Activities Net cash used by investing activities was
$1,994 5, $82.3 and $115.6in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Capital expenditures were $160.0, $88.6 and $94.9 in 2008, 2007
and 2006, respectively. These expenditures were funded by cash
flow from operations. Capital expenditures increased in 2008 due to
production related spending and Playtex related spending. See Note
18 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for capital expenditures
by segment. On October 1, 2007, the Company paid $1,875.7 for the
acquisition of all cuistanding Playtex common stock, repayment or
defeasance of outstanding Playtex debt, and other transaction costs.
See "Financing Activities” below for discussion of the financing of the
transaction. At September 30, 2007, the Company held a net-cash
setited prepaid share option with a major multinational financial institu-
tion to mitigate the impact of changes in the Company’s daferred
compensation liabilities. In December 2007, the prepaid feature was
removed from the transaction and the Company received cash of
860.5, which was used to repay existing detat. Of the $60.5 received,
$46.0 was a return of investment and was classified within investing
activities an the Statement of Cash Flows. The remaining $14.5 was
a return on investment and was classified as a cash inflow from
operating activities on the Statement of Cash Flows.

Capital expenditures of approximately $150 are anticipated in 2006
with increases in production related capital for existing businesses and
planned spending for Playtex. Such capital expenditures are expected
to be financed with funds generated from operations.

Financing Activities The Company’s total borrowings were $2,853.9
at Septernber 30, 2008. The Company maintained total committed
debt facilities of $3,449.9, of which $478.0 was available as of
September 30, 2008.

In October 2007, the Company borrowed approximately $1,500 under
a bridge loan facility which, together with cash on hand was used to
acquire Playtex. The Company subsequently refinanced the bridge loan
with $890 of long-term debt financing, with maturities ranging from
three to ten years and fixed rates ranging from 5,71% to 6.55% and
$600 of long-term bank financing priced at UBOR plus 100

basis points.

Under the terms of the Company's debt facilities, the ratio of the
Company's indebtedness to its Earnings Before Interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amartization (EBITDA) cannot be greater than 4.00 to
1, and may not remain above 3.50 to 1 for mare than four consecutive
quarters. if the ratio is above 3.50 to 1, the Company is required to pay

an additional 75 basis paints in interest for the period in which the ratio
exceeded 3.50 to 1. In addition, the ratio of its current year Earnings
Before Interest and Taxes {EBIT) to total interest expense must exceed
3.00 ta 1. The Company’s ratio of indebtedness to its pro forma
EBITDA, &s defined in the agreements, was 3.25 to 1, and the

ralio of its pro forma EBET, as defined in the agreements, to total
interest expense was 3.91 to 1 as of September 30, 2008. As a

resuft of the rafio of indebtedness to pro forma EBITDA during fiscal
2008, which was above 3.50 to 1 for the period from January 1, 2008
through September 30, 2008, at which time the ratio reduced tc 3.25
to 1, the Company had higher pre-tax inferest expense on fixed bor-
rowings of approximately $13.0 for the current year. Failure to comply
with the above ratios or other covenants could result in acceleration
of maturity, which could trigger cross defaults on other borrowings.
The Company believes that covenant violations, which may result in
acceleration of maturity, are unfikely. The Company's fixed rate debt is
callable by the Company, subject to a “make whale” premium, which
would be required o the extent the underlying benchmark U.S. trea-
sury vield has declined since issuance.

The Company routinely sells a pool of U.S. accounts receivable
through a financing arrangement between Energizer Receivables
Funding Gorporation {the SPE), which is a bankruptcy-remote special
purpose entity subsidiary of the Company, and outside parlies (the
Conduits). Under the current structure, funds received from the
Conduit are treated as borrowings rather than proceeds of accounts
receivables sold for accounting purposes. Borrowings under this pro-
gram receive favorable treatment in the Company's debt compliance
covenants. The program renews annually in May. Further deterioration
in credit markets could result in an inability to renew the program or
renewal on less favorable terms, which may negatively impact compli-
ance reported Debt-to-EBITDA and may require the Company to draw
on other available committed debt facilities.

The counterparties to long-term committed borrowings consist of a
number of major muttinational and international financial Institutions.
The Company continually monitors positions with, and credit ratings of,
counterparties both internally and by using outside ratings agencies.
The Company has staggered long-term borrowing maturities through
2017 to minimize refinancing risk in any single year and to optimize tha
use of free cash flow for repayment. See the contraciual obligations
table provided below.

The Company purchased shares of its common stock as follows
{shares in millions):

Total

Average

Fiscal Year Shares Cost Price
2008 0.0 $ 00 $ 0.00
2007 0.8 $ 530 $67.67
2006 1.3 $600.7 $53.02

The Company has 8 millicn shares remaining on the current authoriza-
tion from its Board of Directors to repurchase its common stock in the
future. Future purchases may be made from time to time on the open

market or through privately negotiated transactions, subject to corpo-

rate cbjectives and the discretion of management.
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A summasy of the Company’s significant contractual obligations at
September 30, 2008 is shown below:

Less than Moro than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 8 yoars
Long-termn debt,
incluckng current
maturities $2,695.5 2106.0 $567.0 $ 9325 $1,090.0
Interest on
long-term debt B805.4 15141 264.2 194.1 196.0
Operating leases 62.0 8.5 254 10.9 7.2
Purchase
ions
and other (1} 650 59.8 5.2 - -
Total $3,627.9 $335.4 $861.8 $1,137.5 $1,293.2

{1} Mha Campany has estimaled approarately $1.5 of cash saftiorments associiod with unrecognred
fax benedts withan the next yaar, wich are Nckuded 1 i Hbk sbove. A3 of Sephambeor 30, 2608,
the Company’s Consoltated Batance Shoot refacts a SbZly m anverngrinod tax benafits of $17.0,
eiudng $6.5 of interest and penarses. The contract.ad obiiations tatie above does not NCuce ths
fahdty. Dus o the xgh degree of Li0orainty mgarting the tming of Raurs cash uifows of Eabitios
for Lnrecognized Bx banefis beyona ona year, 4 rEIRonaGEe estmate of the porod of cash sartirment
for periods beyond the next twelwe months cannol be made. and thus is not Nclded i this tabie.

The Compary has contractual purchase obligations for future purchas-
s, which generally extend one to three months, These obligations are
primarily purchase orders at fair value that are part of nonmal operations
and are reflected in historical operating cash flow trends, In addition,

the Company has variaus commitments refated to senvice and supply
contracts that contain penalty provisions for earty termination. As of
Septernber 30, 2008, we do not belleve such purchase obligations or
termination penalties will have a significant effect on our results of opera-
tions, financial position or liquidity position in the future.

The Company beleves cash flows from operating activities and periodic
bomowings will be adequate to meet short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements prior to the maturity of the Company's credit facilities,
although no guarantee can be given in this regard.

MARKET RISK SENSITIVE INSTRUMENTS AND POSITIONS

The markat risk inherent in the Company's financial instruments and
positions represents the potentiat loss arising from adverse changas

in currency rates, commodity prices, interest rates and stock price.
The following risk management discussion and the estimated amounts
generated from the sensitivity analyses are forward-looking stetements
of market risk assuming certain adverse market conditions occur.
Company policy aflows derivatives to be used only for identifiable
exposures and, therefore, the Company does not enter into hedges
tor trading purposes where the sole objective is to generate orofits.

Cumency Rate Exposure A significant portion of Energizer's protuct
cost is more closely tied to the U.S. dalltar than to the local curren-

cies in which the product is sold. As such, a weakening of currencies
relative 1o the .S, dollar results in margin declines unless mitigated
through pricing actions, which are not always available due to the com-
petitive environmert, Conversely, a strengthening in cumencies relative
to the U.S. dollar can improve margins. This margin impact coupled
with the transtation of foreign operating resuits to the U.S. dollar for
financial reporting purposes may have an impact on reported operating
profits. In the last few months, the U.S. doltar has strengthened con-
siderably versus most forgign currencies. At Novernber 17, 2008 foreign

currency exchange rates, we estimate the impact on segment

profit due to currency transiation to be approxirmately $125 to 5140
unfavorable for the Company as compared to the 2008 average
currency transtation rate. Changes in the value of local currencies in
relation 1o the U.S. dollar will continue to impact segment profitability
in the future, and the Company cannot predict the direction or magni-
tude of future changes.

The Company generally views its investments in foreign subsidiaries with
a functicnal currency other than the U.S. dollar as long-term. As a resut,
the Company does nat generally hedge these net investments. Capiial
structuring techniques are Used to manage the net investment in foreign
currencies, as necessary. Additionally, the Company atternpts to limdt its
U.S. doltar net monetary liabilties in countries with unstable curencies.

From time to time the Company may employ foreign curmency hedging
technigues to mitigate potential losses in earnings or cash flows on
foreign currency transactions, which primarity consist of anticipated
intercompany purchase transactions and intercompany borrowings.
External purchase transactions and intercompany dividends and ser-
vice fees with foreign currency risk may also be hedged. The primary
currencies to which the Company’s foreign affiliates are exposed
include the U.S. dollar, the eurg, the yen, the British pound, the
Canadian dollar and the Australian dollar.

The Company uses natural hedging techniques, such as offsetting

like fareign currency cash flows, foreign currency derivatives with
durations of generally one year or less including forward exchange
contracts, purchased put and call options and zero-cost option collars.
The Company has not designated any of these types of financial instru-
ments as hedges for accounting purposes in the three vears ended
September 30, 2008.

The Company’s foreign currency derivative contracts outstanding at
year-end hedge existing balance sheet exposures. Any losses on these
contracts wouict be fully offset by exchange gains on the undertying
exposures, thus they are not subject to significant market risk. The
contractual amounts of the Company's forward exchange contracts
and purchased currency options in L).S. dollar equivalents were $71.1
and $67.1 at Septemnber 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

In addition, the Company has investments in Venezuela, which cur-
rently require government approval to convert local cunency to us.
dollars at official government rates. Recently, government approval for
currency conversion 1o satisfy U.S. dollar liabilities to foreign suppli-
ers has been delayed, resulting in higher cash balances and higher
past due U.S. dollar payables within our Venezuelan subsidiary. if the
Compary was forced to settle its Venezuelan subsidiary’s U.S. dollar
liahifities using unofficial, parallel currency exchange mochanisms as
of Septembber 30, 2008, it would resutt in a currency exchange loss of
approximately $13.

Commodity Price Exposure The Compary uses raw materials that
are subject to price volatility. The Company will use hetlging instru-
ments as it desires to reduce exposure 1o variabifity in cash flows
associated with future purchases of zinc or other comnodities.
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These hedging instruments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.
At September 30, 2008, the fair market value of the Company’s out-
standing hedging instruments was an urrealized pre-tax loss of $9.8.
Contract maturities for these hedges extend info fiscal year 2010.

Interest Rate Exposure At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the fair
market valua of the Company’s fixed rate debt is estimated at $2,078.5
and $1,423.1, respectively, using yields obtained from independent
pricing sources for similar types of borrowing arrangements. The year
over year increase in fixed rate debt is due primarily to borrowings
related to the Playtex acquisition. The fair value of debt is lower than
the carrying value of the Company’s debt at September 30, 2008 and
2007 by 8151.5 and $51.9, respectively. A 10% decrease in interest
rates on fixed-rate deb! would have increased the fair market value
by $90.0 and $40.4 at September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information regarding the Company’s debt.

The Company has interest rate risk with respect to interest expense
on vanable rate debt. At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Company
had $729.9 and $150.0 variable rate debt ouistanding, respectively.
The book value of the Company's variable rate debt approximates fair
value. A hypothetical 10% increase in variable interest rates would
have had an annual unfavorable impact of $3.5 and $0.9 in 2008 and
2007, respectively, on the Company’s earnings before taxes and cash
flows, based upon these vear-end debt jevels. The increase in the
potential impact of a 10% increase in variable interest rates for 2008 as
compared to 2007 is the result of the increased debt level due to the
purchase of Playtex.

Stock Price Exposure At Septermber 30, 2007, the Company held

a net-cash settled prepaid share option with a major muttinational
financial institution to mitigate the impact of changes in the Company's
deferred compensation fabilities. In December 2007, the prepaid
feature was remaved from the transaction and the Gompany recsived
cash of $60.5, which was used to repay existing debt. Of the $60.5
received, $46.0 was a return of investment and was classified within
investing activities on the Statement of Cash Flows. The remaining
$14.5 was a return on investment and was classified as a cash inflow
from operating activities on the Statement of Cash Flows. As a result
of this change in the share option, the Company will incur yearly fees
at LIBOR plus 230 basis points until the coniract is settled. The fair
market value of the share option was $2.4, as included in other current
liabilities, and $59.3, as included in other current assets, at September
30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The change in fair value of the total
share option for the twetve months ended September 30, 2008 and
2007 resulted in expense of $16.2 and income of $23.2, respectively,
and was recorded in SG&A.

SEASONAL FACTORS

The Company's Household Products segment results are significantly
impacted in the first quarter of the fiscal year by the additional szles
volume associated with the December holiday seasen, particularty in
North America. First quarter sales accounted for 32%, 30% and 31%
of total Househaold Products net sales in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respec-
tively. In addition, natura! disasters, such as hurricanes, can create
conditions that drive exceptional needs for portable power and spike
battery and lighting products sales.

Customer orders for the Company’s Sun Care products are highly
seasonal, which has historically resulted in higher Sun Care sales in
the second and third quarters of the fiscal year and lower sales in the
first and fourth quarters of the fiscal year. As a result, sales, operating
income, working capitat and cash flows for the Personal Care segmant
can vary significantly between quarters of the same and different ywars
due to the seasonality of orders for Sun Care products.

Other factors may also have an impact on the timing and amounts of
sales, operating income, working capital and cash flows. Thay include:
the timing of new product launches by competitors or by the Company,
the timing of advertising, promotional, merchandising or other marketing
activities by competitors or by the Company, and the timing of retailer
merchandsing decisions and actions.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The operations of the Compary, like those of other companies are subject
to various federal, state, forsign and local laws and regulations intended
1o protect the public health and the ervironment. These regulations relate
primarity to worker safety, air and water quality, underground fuel storage
tanks and waste handling and disposal. The Company has received
notices from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, state agencies
ancl/or private parties seeking contribution, that it has been identified as a
“potentially responsible party” (PRP) under the Comprehensive Environ-
mental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, and may be required
to share in the cost of cleanup with respect to seven federal "Superfund”
sites. it may also be required to share in the cost of cleanup with respect
to two state-designated sites or other sites outside of the U.S.

Accrued environmental costs at September 30, 2008 were $11.8, of
which $1.7 is expected to be spent in fiscal 2009. This accrual Is not
measured on a discounted basis. It is difficull to quantify with certainty
the cost of ervironmental matters, particularty remediation and future
capital expenditures for ervironmental control equipment. Nevertheless,
hased on information currently available, the Company believes the
possibility of material environmental costs in excess of the accrued
amount is remote.

INFLATION

Management recognizes that infiationary pressures may have an
adverse effect on the Company, through higher material, labor and
transportation costs, asset replacement costs and related deprecia-
tion, and other costs. In general, the Company has been able 1o
offsat or minimize inflation effects through other cost reductions and
productivity improvernents through mid-2008, thus inflation was not a
significant factor to that point. In recent years, the cost of zinc, nickel,
steel, oll and other commodities used in the Company’s production
and distribution have increased to levels well above those of prior
years. Looking forward, we expect commodities, raw materials and
other inflationary input costs for Household Products and Personal
Care to be unfavorable in 2009 as compared to average costs paid in
2008 by an amount ranging from $65 to $75 based on current market
conditions. Implemented price increases, other product cost savings
and incremental synergies from the Playtex acquisition are expected to
offset this estimated increase.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

{Doflars in millions, except per share and percentage data)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company identified the policies below as critical to its business
operations and the understanding of its results of operations. The impact
and any associated risks related to these policies on its business
operations is discussed throughout Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Resuilts of Operations and Financial Condition, where such
policies affect the reported and expected financial results,

Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAF) in the U.S. requires the
Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and kabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. On

an engoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including
those related to customer programs and incentives, product retuns,
inventories, intangible assets and other long-lived assets, income
taxes, financing, pensions and other postretirement benefits, and con-
tingencies. Actual results could differ from those estimates. This listing
is not intended to be a comprehensive list of all of the Company’s
accounting policies.

m Revenue Recognition The Company's revenue is from the sale
of its products. Revenue is recognized when title, ownership and
risk of loss pass to the customer. When discounts are offered to
customers for early payment, an estimate of such discounts is
recorded as a reduction of net sales in the same period as the sale.
Standard sales terms are final and, except for seasonal sun care
returns which is discussed in detait in the next paragraph, returns
or exchanges are not permitted unless a special exception is made;
reserves are established and recorded in cases where the right of
return does exist for a particular sale.

Under certain circumstances, we aflow customers to return Sun
Care products that have not been sold by the end of the sun care
season, which is normal practice in the sun care industry. We record
salas at the time the title, ownership and risk of loss pass to the
customer. The terms of these sales vary but, in all instances, the
following conditions are met: the sales arrangement is evidencec
by purchase orders submitted by customers; the selling price is
fixed or determinable: title to the product has transterred: there

Is an obligation to pay at a specified date without any additional
conditions or actions required by the Comparny; and collectability is
reasonably assured. Simultaneous with the sale, we reduce sales
and cos! of sales, and reserve amounts on our consclidated bal-
ance sheet for anticipated returns based upon an estimated return
level, in accordance with GAAP. Customers are required to pay

for the Sun Care product purchased during the season under the
required terms. Dus to the seasocnal nature of sun care, we offer a
limited extension of terms to certain qualified customers. This kmited
extension requires substantial cash payments prior to or during the
sun care season. We generally receive retums of U.S. Sun Care
products from September through January following the summer
sun care season. We estimate the level of sun care returns using a
variety of inputs including historical experience, consumption trends
during the sun care season and inventory positions at key retailers
as the sun care season progresses. We monitor shipment activity

and inventory levels at key retailers during the season in an effort to
gauge potentfal returns issues. This allows the Company to manage
shiprment activity to cur customers, especially in the latter stages of
the sun care season, to reduce the potential for returned product.
The ievel of returns may fluctuate from our estimates due to several
factors including weather conditions, customer inventory levets, and
competitive conditions. Based on our 2008 Sun Care shipments,
each percentage point change in our returns rate would have
impacted our reported net sales by $2.8 and our reported operating
income by $2.3.

The Company offers a variety of programs, primarily to its retall cus-
tomers, designed to promote sales of its products. Such programs
require periodic payments and allowances based on estimated
results of specific programs and are recorded as a recluction to net
sales. The Company accrues, at the time of sale, the estimated
total payments and allowances associated with each transaction.
Additionally, the Company offers programs directly to consumers to
promote the sale of its products. Prometions which reduce the ulti-
mate consumer sale prices are recorded as a reduction of net sales
at the time the promotional offer is made, generally using estimated
redemption and participation levels. Taxes we collect on behali of
governmental authorities, which are generally inciuded! in the price
to the customer, are also recorded as a reduction of net sales.

The Company continually assasses the adequacy of zccruals for
customer and consumer promotional program costs not yet paid.
To the extent total program payments differ from estimates, adjust-
ments may be necessary. Historically, these adjustments have not
been material to annual results.

Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits The determi-
nation of the Company’s abligation and expense for pansion and
other postretirement banefits is dependent on cartain assumptions
developed by the Company and used by actuaries in cakculating
such amounts. Assumptions include, among others, the discount
rate, future salary increases and the expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets. Actual results that differ from assumptions
made are recognized on the batance sheet and subsequentty amor-
tized 1o earnings over future periods. Significant differences in actual
experience or significant changes in assumptions may materiaily
afiect pension and other postretirement obligations. In determining
the discount rate, the Company uses the yiekd on high-quality bonds
that coincide with the cash flows of its plans’ estimated payouts.
For ihe U.S. plans, which represent the Company's moast significant
obligations, the GitiGroup yield curve is used in détermining the
discount rates.

Of the assumptions listed above, changes in the expected assets
return have the most significant impact on the Company's annual
earnings prospectively. A cne percentage point decrease or
increase in expected assets return would decrease or increase the
Company’s pre-tax pension expense by approximatety $7. in ad-
dition, it may increase and accelerate the rate of required pension
contributions in the future.
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As of the measurement date, uncertainty in ecenomic markets and
the credit crisis produced an increase in yields in corporate bonds
rated as high-quality. Discount rates based on high-quality corporate
bonds increased as well, leading to decreases in obligations reported
at year end. A one percentage point decrease in the discount rate
would increase obligations by $65 at Septermber 30, 2008.

As allowed under GAAP, the Company’s U).8. qualified pension plan
uses Markst Related Value, which recognizes market apprecia-

tion or depreciation in the portfolio over five years so it reduces the
short-term impact of markel fluctuations.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets The Company periodically
evaluates its long-lived assets, including goodwill and intangible
assets, for potential impairment indicators. As a result of the Playlex
acquisition, tolal intangible assets, including goodwill, increased to
$2,869.6 at September 30, 2008. Judgmenis regarding the existence
of impairment indicators, including lower than expected cash flows
from acquired businesses, are based on legal factors, market condi-
tions and operational performance. Future events could cause the
Company to conctude that impaimment indicators exist. The Company
estimates fair value using valuation technigues such as EBITDA mul-
tiples and discounted cash flows. This requires management to make
assumptions regarding future income, workdng capital and discount
rates, which would &ffect the impairment calculation.

Income Taxes The Company estimates income taxes and the
income tax rate in each jurisdiction that it operates. This involves
estimating taxable earnings, specific taxable and deductible items,
the tkefihood of generating sufficient future taxable income to wlilize
deferred tax assets and possible exposures refated to future tax
audits. Deferred tax assets are evaluated on a subsidiary by subsid-
tary basis for realizabiiity. Valuation allowances are established when
the realization is not deemed to be more likely than not. Future per-
fornmance is monitored, and when objectively measurable operating
trends change, adjustments are made to the valuation allowances
accordingly. To the extent the estimates described above change,
adjustments to income taxes are made in the period in which the
estimate is changed.

The Company operates in multiple jurisdictions with complex tax
and regulatory environments, which are subject to differing inter-
pretations by the taxpayer and the taxing autharities. At times, we
may take positions that management believes are supportable, but
are potentially subject to successful challenges by the appropriate
taxing authority. The Company evaluates its tax positions and estab-
lishes liabiiities in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board Interpreiation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in tncome
Taxes.” The Company reviews these tax uncertainties in light of the
changing facts and circumstances, such as progress of tax audits,
and adjusts thermn accordingly.

B Acquisitions The Company uses the purchase method, which
requires the allocation of the cost of an acquired business io the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated
fair values at the date of acquisition. The excess value of the cost
of an acquired business over the fair value of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed is recognized as goodwill. The valuation of
the gequired assets and kiabilities will impact the determination of
future operating results. The Company uses a variety of informa-
tion sources to determing the value of acquired assets and liabilities
including: third-party appraisers for the values and lives of property,
identifiable intangibles and inventories; actuaries for defined benefit
retirernent plans and legal counsel or other experts to assess the
obligations associated with legal, environmental or other claims.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
See discussion in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
related to recently issued accounting standards.

FORWARD-LCOKING INFORMATION

Statements in the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financial Condition and other sections of this Annual
Report to Shareholders that are not histonical, particularty statements
regarding estimated synergies related to the Playtex acquisition; the
international expansion of the Playtex product line; the anticipated
continuing success of the Company's trade-up strategy for batteries
and lighting products; battery category softness on a global basis;

the existence and impact of excess battery inventory going into the
first quarter; the anticipated impact of inflationary comenodity and
other material input costs, as well as our ability to increase prices,
cost reduction programs and incremental synergies to offset such
increases; the estimated impact of foreign currency devaluation on the
Company's profitability in 2009 and the kkelihood of attaining targeted
or flat earnings per share (EPS) growth for the year; the Company's
estimates of its share of total U.S. retail battery market and share of
the wet shave category in major imarkets; estimated capital expendii-
tures for fiscal year 2009 and their source of financing; the likelihood
of acceleration of the Company's debt maturities, the impact of further
deterioration in credit markets on the Company’s ability to renew its
accounts receivable financing program, the anticipated adequacy of
cash flows and the Company's ability to meet liquidity requirements;
the impact of adverse changes in interest rates, currency exchange
losses in Venezuela and the market risk of foreign currency deriva-
tives; the mitigating impact of changes in value of the share option on
deferred compensation liabilities; the materiality of future expenditures
for environmental matters and environmental control equipment;
potential adjustments to accruals for promotional program costs; the
impact of variations from assumptions on pension asset returns and
discount rates on the Company’s pre-tax pension expense and benefit
obligations; and the valuation of long-lived assets, may be considered
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Company cautions readers not to
place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements, which speak
only as of the date made.



20 ENERGIZER HOLDINGS, INC. 2008 Annual Report

The Company advises readers that various risks and uncertainties
could affect its financial performance and could cause the Company's
actual results for future periods to differ materially from those antici-
pated or projected. Continuing negative economic conditions
associated with the global credit crisis, global stock market declines,
and economic deterioration, as well as competitive activity, could
significantly and negatively impact future growth and performance of
the Company’s businesses, including the Company’s trade-up strategy
for batteries and lighting products and the international expansion of
the Playtex product tines. Continued EPS growth in fiscal 2009, as well
as the Company's long-term growth positioning, will depend not only
on improvernent in the global macroecenomic conditions described
above, but also on the Company's ability to continue operating its
businesseas profitably in the face of declines in consumer spending,
potential retaller consolidation, material cost increases, limits on
availability of credit, and competitive activity, particutarty in light of the
vastly greater size and market strength of the Comparny's primary
competitor. The extent of future synergies related to the Playtex
acquisition may be significantly different from current expectations dus
to changes in market or competitive conditions, systems or personnel
issues, or other operational factors. Anticipated category growth, if any,
for the Company's businesses is difticult to quantify or estirmate given
the current volatile global economic situation. The Company’s broad
diversified portfolio of battery products across a wide range of
consumer price points and senvice demands provides some measure
of protection against softness in various ranges of the battery category
spectrum, On the other hand, the overall category could be signifi-
cantty negatively impacted by continuing economic distress and
accompanying declines in consumer spending, as well as declines

in the proliferation or consumption of battery-powered devices or

the development of alternative power sources. Moreover, product
placement and shelf-space and facings available to our portfolio of
products are solely at the discretion of our retaller customers, which
can limit visibility or availability to the ultimate consumers. The
Company's estimates of its U.S. market share and estimates of share
of the wet shave category, as well as estimates of excess retailer
inventory levels of battery products resulting from hurricane-relatex
shipments and early holiday shipments are based solely on limited
¢data available to it and management’s reasonable assumptions about
market conditions, and consequently may be inaccurate, or may not
reflect significant segments of the retail market. Consequenily, sales
volumes for 2002 may be impacted more than currently estimated by
actual cusrent inventory levels. The impact of material and other
inflationary input cost increases could be more significant than
anticipated, as it is difficult to predict with any accuracy whether raw
matetial, energy and other input costs wil stabilize or continue to
increase, since such costs are impacted by muttiple economic, political
and other factors outside of the Company's control. The anticipated
benefits of the Company’s pricing actions, cost reduction programs
and incremental synergies from the Playtex acquisition may not be
realized to the axtent anticipated, or may not be sufficient to offset
greater than anticipated increases in supply costs. The benefits of price
increases may not be realized in the event of consumer resistance

or a significant decline In consumer demand, it competitive activity
mandates additional promotional spending or a revamping of the
pricing structure, or if other operating costs increase unexpectedty.

The estimated future impact of foreign curency devaluations on the
Company's profitability is also difficull to estimate with any degree of
certainty. Prolonged recessionary conditions in key glob.al markets
where the Comparny competes could result in significantly greater local
currency devaluation and comespondingly greater negative impact on
the Company than what can be anticipaied from current spot rates.
On the other hand, if concerted global stabilization measures achieve
sorme degrea of ecenomic recovery, local currencies could be
significantly strengthaned relative to the dollar. Liquidity issues or
alternative cash flow uses, competitive activity or general economic
changes could impact the amount and timing of capital expenditures.
Continued compliance with debt covenants providing for a required
debt to EBITDA ratic can be impacted by higher than anticipated debt
levels as a resutt of greater than anticipated cash needs or Dy lower
than anticipated cash flows necessary for debl service. Compliance
can also be impacted by earnings deciines over the measuremert
period, either as a result of challenges faced specifically by the Compa-
ny's businesses, or as a resutt of general economic conditions and rising
unemployment. Unforeseen fluctuations in levels of the Company’s
operating cash flows, or inability to maintain compliance with its debt
covenants, could limit the Company's ability to meet future operating
expenses and liquidity requirements, fund capital expenditures or
service its debt as it becomes due. Economic turmoeil and currency
fluctuations could increase the Company's risk from unfavorable
impact on variable-rate debt, currency derivatives and cther financiat
instruments. Deferred compensation liabilities reflecting the value of
ENR Common Stock may increase significantly, depencing on market
fluctuation arcl employea elections, bul such increase may not be
reflected in a comparable increase in the value of the share option.
Unknown environmental fiabilities ang greater than anticipated
remediation expenses or environmental conirol expenditures could
have a material impact on the Company's financial posilion, Estimates
of environmental liabilitizs are based upon, among other things,

the Company's payments and/or accruals with respect to each
remadiiation site; the number, ranking and financial strenigth of other
responsible parties (PRPs); the status of the proceedings, including
various settlement agreements, consent decrees or court orders;
allocations of volumetric waste contributions and allocations of relative
responsibility among PRPs developed by regulatory agencies and by
private parties; remediation cost estimates prepared by governmenta)
authorities or private technical consuttants: and the Cornpany’s
historical experience in negotiating and settling disputes with respect
to similar sites ~ and such estimates may prove to be inaccurate.
Adjustments to accruals for promotional programs and calculations of
irmpairment of long-lived assets may be more significant than antici-
pated. The impact of decreases in the expected returns from pension
assets may have a greater than anticipated impact on pension
expenses and required cash contributions. In addition, other risks and
uncertainties not presently known to us or that we consider immaterial
could affect the accuracy of any such forward-looking statements. The
Company does not undertake any obligation to update any forward-
looking statements to reflect events that occur or circurnstances that
exist after the date on which they were made. Additional risks and
uncertainties include those detailed from time to time in the Company's
publicly filed documants.
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Summary Selected Historical Financial Information
{Doliars in millions, except per share data)

Statement of Earnings Data

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 {a) 2007 2006 2005 2004
Net sales $4,331.0 $3,365.1 $3,076.9 $2,089.8 $2,812.7
Depreciation and amortization 141.3 115.0 117.5 116.3 1158
Earnings before income taxes (b) 473.2 434.2 356.6 388.7 347.8
Income taxes 143.9 112.8 95.7 108.0 86.8
Net earnings (¢} $ 329.3 $ 3214 $ 28049 $ 2807 % 2610
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 5N $ 567 $ 428 $ 395 $ 324

Diluted $ 559 $ 551 $ 414 $ 382 $ 313
Average shares outstanding:

Basic 57.6 56.7 61.2 71.0 B0.6

Diluted 58.9 58,3 63.1 3.5 83.4
Balance Sheet Data
AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 {a) 2007 2006 2005 2004
Working capital $ 6651 $ 8885 $ 708.2 $ 626.4 3 469.2
Property, plant and equipment, net §35.5 6409 659.9 682.5 705.6
Total assets 5,816.7 3.525.7 31328 2,973.8 2,931.7
Long-term debt 2,589.5 1,372.0 1,625.0 1,295.0 1,056.6
{a} Playtex Products, Inc. was acquired October 1, 2007
) Eamings before ncome taxes were (recticedyincreased by the folowng tems:
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 2007 2008 2005 2004
Acquisition inventory valuation $ (275 5 - 5 - & - 8 -
Integration costs 17.49) - - - -
Previsions for restructuring and related costs {3.2} (18.2) 37.4) 5.7} 5.2}
Foreign pension charge - - (4.5) - -
Special termination benefits - - - - 15.2}
Intellectual property rights income - - - - 158

Total $ (48.6) $ (18.9) $ 419 $ (6.9 $ (189}
fc) Net earmings wers freducediincraased by the following ferns:
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Acquisition inventory valuation, net of tax $ {16.5) $ - $ - $ - 5 -
Integration costs, net of tax (11.4) : - - - -
Provisions for restructuring and related costs, net of tax (2.0 2.2 24.9) (3.7) 3.8
Foreign pension charge, net of tax - - a7 - -
Special termination benefits, net of fax - - - - 9.6)
Adjustrnents to prior years' tax accruals (1.1} 7.9 109 10.6 8.5
Tax benefits racognized related to prior years’ losses - 4.3 67 14,7 16.2
Deterred tax benefit due {o statutory rate change - 9.7 - - -
Repatriation under the Armerican Jobrs Creation Act - - - .0 -
Intellectual property rights income, net of tax - - - - 0.9
Total $ (31.0) $ a7 $ {12.0) $ 128 $ 122
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation and integrity of the financial statements of Energizer
Holdings, Inc. {the Company) are the responsibility of its management.
These statements have been prepared in conformance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America, and
in the opinion of management, fairly present the Company's financial
paosition, results of operations and cash flows.

The Cormpany maintains accounting and internal control systems,
which it believes are adequate to provide reasonable assurance that
assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposi-
tion and that the financial records are reliable for preparing finangiz
statements, The selection and training of qualified personnal, the
establishment and communication of accounting and administrative
policies and procedures, and an extensive program of internal audits
are important elements of these contro! systems.

The report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered
public accounting fiemn, on their audits of the accompanying financial
staterments that appears herein. This report states that the audits were
made in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). These standards include a
study and evaluation of internal control for the purpose of establishing
a basis for reliance thereon relative 1o the scope of their audits of the
financial statements.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee consisting solely
of non-management directors, meets periodically with management,
internal auckt and the independent auditors 10 discuss audi and financial
reporting matters. To assure independence, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP has direct access to the Audit Committee.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTRCL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal control over financial reporting. The Company's
internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles for external purposes. The Company’s
internal contral over financial reporting Includes those policies and
procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, aceurately ang fairdy reflect the transactions and
dispesitions of the assets of the Company; (i) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with ¢enerally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (i) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements, Interral control over
financial reporting, because of its inherent fimitations, may not prevent
or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evatuation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that conirols may
become inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,
Management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework set forth in Internal Control - Integrated Framework, issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on the Company’s assessment, management
has concluded that internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2008 was effective. The Company's internal control
over financial reporting as of Septerber 30, 2008 has been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public
accourting firm, as stated in their report that appears hare.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Energizer Holdings, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and
the related consclidated statements of earnings and comprehensive
income, of cash flows and of shareholders' equity present fairly, in

all material respects, the financial position of Energizer Holdings, Inc.
and its subsidiaries at September 30, 2008 and 2007 and tha resutts
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended September 30, 2008 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, Also in
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all materiat respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2008,
based on criteria established in intermal Controf - Integrated Framework
issued by the Committes of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSQO). The Company’s management is responsible for
these financial statemeants, for maintaining effective intermal contral
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management's Report on tnternal Gontrol over Financial Reporting, Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and
on the Company’s internal controf over financial reporting based on
our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Compary Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audiis

to abtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all materiat respects. Qur
audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and discloswres in the tinancial
slalements, assessing the accounting principles used and signiticant
astimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation, Qur audit of intamal control over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qur audits also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No.
158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Gther

Paostretirement Plans - an Amendment to FASB Statements No. 87,

88, 106, and-132(R), as of September 30, 2007.

A company's internal control over financia! reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial staterments for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principtes, A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (j) pertain 1o the maintenance

ol records that, in reasonabie detail, accurately and tairly reflact the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (i) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statemants in accordance with generalty
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
managernent and directors of the company; and (i) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial stalements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial report-
ing may not prevent or detect misstatements, Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to fulure periods are subject to the risk that
controls may hecome inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate.

Kwﬂmﬁmu Lt

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
St. Louis, Missouri

‘November 26, 2008
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income
(Dotars in mifions, except per share data)

Statement of Earnings
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMEER 30. 2008 2007 2006
Net sales $4,331.0 $3,365.1 $3,076.9
Cost of products sold 2,293.3 1.760.4 1.596.1
Gross profit 2,037.7 1.604.7 1.480.8
Sefing, general and administrative expense 794.0 627.9 601.9
Advertising and promotion expense 486.8 395.2 368.9
Ressarch and davelopment expense 91.7 70.7 74.2
Interest expense 181.3 9.2 77.9
Other financing expense/{incomae), net 10.7 {14.5) 1.3
Eamings beforg incorme taxes 473.2 434.2 356.6
Incoma taxes 143.9 1128 95.7
Mot eamings $ 3293 $ 3214 $ 2609
Earnings Per Share

Basic net earmings per share $ 57 $ 567 $ 426

Diluted net earnings por share $ 558 $ 551 $ 414
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Net eamings $ 3203 $ 3214 $ 2809
Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustments .8 739 29.4

Pension/Postratirerment activity, not of tax of $(17.8) in 2008, $8.9 in 2007 and $1.3 in 2006 (46.5) 20.5 1.7

Deforred gainv{loss) on hadging activity, not of tax of $1.7 in 2008 and $(4.7) in 2007 3.8 (10.6) -
Comprehonsive incoma $ 2904 $ 4052 $ 2020

The abova fnancia! szatoments should He mad in conlnclion with the Notes To Consaliaaled Firancial Staremonts.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
{Doliars in millions, except par values)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 2007
Assets
Currant assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1.2 $ 3632
Trade receivables, net 923.2 788.3
Inventorias 674.5 582.3
Other current assets 257.8 2705
Total current assets 2,026.8 2,004.3
Property, plant and equipment, net 835.5 649.9
Goodwil 1,206.4 380.1
Other intangible assets 1,663.2 3104
Othor assets B4.8 181.0
Total assots $5,816.7 $3,525.7
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities
Current maturities of long-term dabt $ 1060 $ 2100
Notes payable 264.4 43.0
Accounts payable 2624 2556
Qther current liabilities 7289 607.2
Total current liabilities 1,361.7 1,1158
Long-term debt 2,589.5 1,372.0
Other liabilities 869.2 384.0
Sharehclders' equity
Preterred stock, $.01 par value, none outstanding - -
Common stock, $.01 par vakse, issued 97,083,682 at 2008 and 2007, respectively 1.0 1.0
Additional paid-in capital 1,009 999.0
Retained eamings 1,671.8 1,362.7
Common stock in treasury, at cost, 38,900,801 shares at 2008 39,772,001 shares at 2007 (1,719.3) (1.755.6)
Accumutated other comprehensive income 7.9 46.8
Total shareholders' equity 996.3 6853.9
Total liahilities and sharehwoklers’ equity $5,816.7 $3,525.7

Tha AboviE fInancel Sialements shoidd b8 foad i CoRjUNCEion with the Notes To Consoikdatad Fnancial Statoments.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in mitions)
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 2007 2006
Cash Flow from Operations
Net earnings $ 3293 $ 3214 $ 280.9
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash fiow from operations:
Depreciation and amortization 141.3 1150 117.8
Defarred income taxes 27.0 (28.6) (23.3)
Other non-cash charges 39.2 41.8 254
Qther, net {25.0) 7.7 11.0
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital 511.8 457.3 391.5
Changes in assets and liabilties used in operations, net of effects of business acquisitions:
Increase in accounts recetvable, nat (39.4) {41.6} (15.0)
Docrease/(increase) in inventories 29.5 {7.1} 54.2}
(Increasal/decrease in other current assots {2.8) 5.9 58
(Decrease)increase in accounts payabla {9.8) 42 11.5
{Decrease)increase in other current liabilities (22.8) 26.6 33.4
Nal cash flow from operations 466.5 445.3 3730
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Capital expenditures {160.0) {88.6) {94.9)
Proceeds from sale of assets 1.2 36 6.6
Acquisitions, net of cash aoquired {1,882.1) - -
Proceeds fronv{investment) in share options 46,0 - (19.8)
Other, net 0.4 2.7 7.7}
Net cash used by investing activities {1,994.5) {82.3) [115.6)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Cash proceeds from issuance of debt with original maturities greater than 90 days 1,482.8 - 497.8
Cash payments on debt with original maturities greater than 90 days (269.5) {100} (15.00
Met increasa/{decrease} in debt with original maturities of 90 days or less 97.4 {(148.3) (123.3)
Common stock purchased - {53.0) {800.7)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 12.9 357 214
Excess tax benefits from share-based payments 16.5 36.2 8.2
Nat cash from/{used) by financing acthities 1,340.1 {137.4} 211.5
Eflect of exchange rate changes on cash {4.1} 3.3 3.9
Net (decrease)increasa in cash and cash equivalents (192.0} 2289 49.8
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 363.2 134.3 84.5
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 171.2 $ 363.2 $ 1343

The ahawy fnancil stataments should Do (e i conjunction with tha Notos To Consolgaten Fingncial Stalameonts
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
{Dotlars in miltions, shares in thousands)

DOLLARS SHARES
2008 2007 2008 2008 2007 2008
Common stock:
Balance at beginning of year $ 1.0 $ 1.0 $ 1.0 97,084 97,084 07,084
Aclivity under s10Ck plans - - - - - =
Ending batance 1.0 1.0 t.0 97,084 97,084 97,084
Additional paid-in capita:
Balance at beginning of year 999.0 950.2 929.6
Activity under stock plans 35.8 48.8 20.8
Ending balance 1,034.9 998.0 950.2
Retained eamings:
Balance at beginning of year 1,362.7 1,073.2 832.7
Net egrnings 329.3 3214 260.9
Activity under stock plans (20.2) (31.9) {20.4)
Ending balance 16718 1,362.7 10732
Common stock in treasury:
Balznce at beginning of year {1,755.6) (1,754.2) (1,193.9) (39,772) (40,410) {30,044}
Treasury stock purchasad - {53.0) (600.7) - (783} {11,339}
Activity under stock plans 36.3 51.6 40.4 an 1.421 965
Ending balance (1,719.3) (1,755.6) {1,754.2) {38,901} (39.772) {40,410)
Accumulated other comprehensive income/{loss}:
Curnulative translation adjustment:
Balance at beginning of year 47.5 (26.4) {55.8)
Foreign currency translation adjustment 3.8 73.9 29.4
Erxling balance 51.3 475 (26.4)
Pension Eability:
Balance at beginning of year 9.9 {31.4) [33.1)
Pension/Postretirement activity (46.5) 20.5 1.7
Adiustment to initialty apply SFAS 158 - 20.8 -
Ending balance, net of tax of $(8.0)in 2008, $9.8
in 2007 and ${15.0} in 2006 (38.6} 9.9 (31.4)
Detarrad lpss on hedging activity:
Balance at beginning of year {10.6} - -
Activity 3.8 (10.6) -
Ending balance, net of 1ax of $(3.0) in 2008,
&(4.7} in 2007 (6.8} (10.6) -
Total accumttated other comprehensive
incomed{loss) 7.9 48.8 {57.8}
Total shareholders’ equity $ 9953 $ 6539 § 2124

The abovo francil stalaments should be read in counction witn the Notos To Consokiatid Financial Statoments,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Dofars in millions, excepl per share and percenitage dala)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generafty
accepted accounting principles in the U.S. (GAAP) requires Energizer
Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Company} to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses. On an ongaing basis, the Cormpany evalu-
ates its estimates, including these related to customer programs and
incentives, product reiurns, bad debts, inventories, intangible and other
long-lived assets, income taxes, financing, pensions and cother postre-
tirerneni benefits, contingencies and acquisitions, Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's significant accounting policies, which conform to
GAAP and are applied on a consistent basis among all years present-
ed, except as indicated, are described below.

Principles of Consolidation The financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany transactions are eliminated. Investiments in
affitated companies, 20% through 50% owned, arg accounted for
under the equity method.

Foreign Currency Translation Financial statements of foreign opera-
tions whera the local currency is the functional curency are translated
uging end-of-period exchange rates for assets and liabilities, and aver-
age exchange rates during the period for results of operations. Related
translation adjustmenis are reported as a component within accumu-
lated other comprehensive income in the shareholders’ equity section
of the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

For foreign operations where the U.S. dadllar is the functional currency and
for countries that are considerad highly inflationary, translation practices
differ in that inventories, properties, accumutated depreciation and depre-
ciation expense are translated at historical rates of exchange, and refated
translation adjustments are included in eamings. Gains and kosses from
foreign cumency transactions are generally induded in eamings.

Financial Instruments and Derivative Securities The Company
uses financial instruments, from time to time, in the management of
foreign currency, interest rate and other risks that are inherent to its
business cperations. Such instruments are not held or issued for

trading purposes.

Foreign exchange {F/X) instruments, including currency forwards,
purchased options and zero-cost option collars, are used primarily to
reduce transaction exposures and, to a lesser extent, o manage other
translation exposures. F/X instruments used are sefected based on
their risk reduction attributes and the related market conditions. The
Company also holds a contract with an embedded derivative instru-
rment to mitigate the risk of its deferred compensation tiabilities, as
discussed further in Note 14, The Company has not designated these
financial instruments as hadges for accounting purposes in the three
years ended September 30, 2008.

The Company uses raw matesials that are subyect to price volatility. The
Company uses hedging instruments a5 it desires to reduce exposure to

variahility in ¢cash flows associated with future purchases of zinc or other
commeodities. For further discussion of such instruments, see Note 14.

Cash Equivalents For purposes of the Consolidated Staterments of
Cash Flows, cash equivalents are all considered to be highly fiquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased.,

Accounts Receivable Valuation Accounts receivable are stated at their
net realizable value. The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects the
Company’s best estimate of probable losses inherent in the receivables
portfolio determined on the basis of historical experiences, specific
allowances for known troubled accounts and cther currently available
information. Bad debxt expense is included in seling, genera and admin-
istrative (SG&A) expense in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

Inventories Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with
cost generaly being determined using average cost or the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method.

As pari of the Playtex acquisition, the Company recorded a fair value
adjustment of $27.5 to bring the carrying value of the inventory pur-
chased in the Playtex acquisition to an amount which aporoximated
the estimated selling price of the finished goods on hand at the closing
date less the sum of {a) costs of disposat and {b) a reasonable profit
allowance for the selling effort of the acquiring entity. As 1he inventory
was sold during the first and second quarters of fiscal 2008, the $27.5
adjustment was charged to cost of products sold.

Capitalized Software Costs Capitalized software costs are included in
Other Assets, These costs are amortized using the straight-line method
over periods of related benefit ranging from three to seven years.
Expenditures related to capitalized software are included in the capital
expenditures caption in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Preperty, Plant and Equipment Property, plant and equipment is
stated at historical costs. Property, plant and equipment acquired as
part of the Playtex acquisition was recorded at fair value on the date of
acguisition. Fair value was established using a cost approach for the
operating fixed assets and comparable sales and properiy assess-
ment data for the valuation of land. Expenditures for new facilifies and
expenditures that substantially increase the useful life of property,
including interest during construction, are capitalized and reported in
the capital expenditures caption in the Consolidated Stataments of
Cash Flows. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals ars expensed
as incurred. When property is retired or otherwise disposad of, the
related cost and accumutated depreciation are removed from the
accounts, and gains or losses on the disposition are reflacted in earn-
ings. Depreciation is generally provided on the straight-line basis by
charges to costs or expenses at rates based on estimated useful lives.
Estimated useful lives range from tweo to 25 years for machinery and
equipment and three to 30 years for buildings. Depreciation expense
was $121.4, $104.6 and $10€.1 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Estimated useful lives are periodically reviewed and, when appropri-
ate, changes are made prospectively. When certain events or changes
in operating conditions occur, asset lives may be adjusted and an
impairment assessment may be performed on the recoverability of the
carrying amounts.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangibles are not amortized, but are evaluated annually for impair-
ment as part of the Company’s annual business planning cycle in

the fourth quarter. The fair value of each reporting unit is estimated
using valuation techniques such as Earmnings Before interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) multiples and discounted cash
flows. Intangible assets with finite lives, and a remaining weighted aver-
age life of approximately seven years, are amartized on a straight-line
basis over expected lives of 18 months to 15 years. Such imangibles
are also evaluated for impairment including on-going monitoring of
potential impaiment indicators.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets The Company reviews long-lived
assets, other than goodwill and other intangible assets for impairment,
when events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the
remaining useful life may warrant revision or that the carrying amount
of the long-lived asset may not be fully recoverable. The Company
performs undiscounted cash flow analyses to determine it impairment
exists. I impaiment is determined to exist, any related impairment
loss is calculated based on fair value. Impairment losses on assets

to be disposed of, if any, are based on the estimated proceeds to be
received, less cost of disposal.

Revenue Recognition The Company's revenue is from the sale of its
products. Revenue is recognized when titie, ownership and risk of loss
pass 1o the customer. Discounts are offered to customers for early pay-
ment and an estimate of such discounts is recorded as a reduction of
net sales in the same period as the sale. Qur standard sales terms are
final and returns or exchanges are not penmitted unless a speclal excep-
tion &5 made; reserves are established and recorded in cases where the
right of return does exist for a particular sale. Under certain circum-
stances, we authorize customers to return Sun Care products that

have nat been soid by the end of the sun care season, which is normal
practice in the sun care industry. We record sun care sales at the time
the products are shipped and title transfers. Simuttaneously with the time
of the shipment, we reduce sun care sales and cost of sales, and record
an accnued Babiity on our Consolidated Balance Sheet for anticipated
returns based upon an estimated return level. Customers are required to
pay for the sun care product purchased under the required terms, Due
to the seasoral nature of sun care, we offer a limited extension of terms
to certain qualified customers. This limited extension reguires substantial
cash payments prior to or during the sun care season. We generally
recedve returns of our U.S. Sun Care products from Septernber through
January following the summer sun care season.

The Company offers a variety of programs, primarily to its retail
customers, designed to promote sales of its products. Such programs
requiire periodic payments and allowances based on estimated results
of specific programs and are recorded as a reduction o net sales. The
Company accrues, at the time of sale, the estimated total payments
and allowances associated with each transaction. Additicnally, the
Company offers programs directly to consumers 1o promote the sale
of its products. Promotions which reduce the uttimate consumer

sale prices are recorded as a reduction of net sales at the time the
promational offer is made, generally using estimated redemption and
participation levels. Taxes we collect on behalf of governmental

authorities, which are generally included in the price to the customer,
are also recorded as a reduction of net sales. The Company continualty
assesses the adequacy of accruals for customer and consumear
prometional program costs not yet paid. To the extent total program
payments differ from estimates, adjustments may be necessary.
Historically, these adjustments have not been material.

Advertising and Promotion Costs The Company advertises and pro-
motes its products through national and regional media and expenses
such activities in the year incurred.

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made to the
prior year financial statements to conform to the current presentation.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Other than as
dascribed below, no new accounting pronouncement issued or effec-
tive during the fiscal year has had or is expected to have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Adoption of FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in income Taxes — An
Interpretation of FASE Staterment No. 109"

On Qctober 1, 2007, the Company adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncer-
tainty in Income Taxes - an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 108"
{FIN 48). FIN 48 addresses the accounting and disclosure of uncertain
tax positions. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measure-
ment attributes for the financial statement recognition and measurement
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The differ-
ence between the tax benefit recognized in the financial statements for
a position in accordance with FIN 48 and the {ax benefit claimed in the
tax return is referred to as an unrecognized tax benefit.

At October 1, 2007, the adoption date, the Company had $34.5 of
unrecognized tax benefits in the financial statements exclusive of the
Playtex acquisition. Of this amount, the change to the October 1, 2007
balance sheet resutting from the cumutative effect of the change in
accounting principle was immaterial. Included in the unrecognized tax
benefits at Septembier 30, 2008 is $43.5 of unicertain tax positions
that would affect the Company's effective tax rate, if recognized. The
Company does not expect any significant increasses or decreases {o
the unrecognized tax benefits within the next twehe months of this
raporting date. Unrecognized tax benefits are classified as other
liabilities {non-current) to the extent that payment is not anticipated
within one year.

Prior to the adoption of FIN 48, only interest expense on underpay-
ments of income taxes was included in the income tax provision.
Penalties were classified as an operating expense in ariving at pre-tax
income. Upon adoption of FIN 48, the Company elected a new
accounting policy, as permitted by FIN 48, to also classity accrued
penaltios related to unrecognized tax benefits in the incoma tax provi-
sion, The Company has accrued approximately $5.8 of interest and
$0.7 in penalties in the income tax provision. Interest was computed
on the difference between the tax position recognized in accordance
with FIN 48 and the amount previously taken or expected to be taken
in the Company’s tax returns.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Doblars in mitlions, except per share and percentage data)

Staternent of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141(R;,
“Business Combinations”™

In December 2007, the FASB issued a revised standard, SFAS

No. 141, “Business Combinations™ (SFAS No. 141{R)), which improves
the relevance, representational faithfulness and comparability of the
financial information that is disclosed on business combinations and its
effects. In addition, i revises the method of accounting for a number
of aspects of business combinations including acquisition costs,
contingent liabilities, contingent purchase price and post-acquisition
exit activities of the acquired business. SFAS No. 141(R) is effectiva
for business combinations entered into in fiscal years beginning on or
after December 15, 2008, which would be as of October 1, 2009 for
Energizer. Early adoption is prohibited. The Company believes that
the adoption of SFAS No. 141(R) wilt not have a material effect on its
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

SFAS No. 160, “Non-Controfiing Interests in Consolidated Financial
Staterments - An Amendment to ARB No. 51

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 160, *Non-Controliing
Interests in Consolidated Financial Staterments -~ An Amendment to
ARB No. 51" (SFAS 1860}, which improves the relevance, comparabil-
ity and transparency of the financial information that is disclosed for
minority interests, SFAS Ng. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning
on or after Decembar 15, 2008, which would be October 1, 2009 for
Energizer. Early adoption is prohibited. The Company believes that the
adoption of SFAS No. 160 will not have a material effect on its financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

SFAS Standard No. 161, “Disclosures About Derivative Instruments
And Hedging Activities-An Amendment of FASE Staterment No. 133"
In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, "Disclosures About
Dertvative Instruments And Hedging Activities™ (SFAS No. 161). SFAS
No. 161 is intended to help investors better understand how derivative
instruments and hedging activities affect an entity’s financial position,
financiat performance and cash flows through enhanced disclosure
requirements. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued

for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after Novernber 15, 2008.

3. PLAYTEX ACQUISITION

On October 1, 2007, the Company acquired all of the issued and
outstanding shares of common stock of Playtex at $18.30 per share
in cash and simultanecusly repaid &l of Playtex's outstanding debt as
of that date {the Acquisition) for consideration totating $1,875.7. The
Company acquired all assets and assumed all kabilities of Playtex.
There are no contingent payments, options or commitments associ-
ated with the Acquisition. In a separate transaction, for consideration
totaling $19.5, the Company acquired certain intangible assets retated
to the Wet Ones brand in the United Kingdom. Playtex owns the Wet
Ones trademark in the U.S. and Canada. This is included with the
Acquisition in the presentation of the financial impact of the Acquisition
presented below. A summary of consideration paid is as follows:

Short-term bormowings $ 1750
Long-term borrowings 880.2
Bormowing to repay outstanding Playlex debt 590.9
Total consideration from bormowings 1,646.1
Cash used - gross 261.0
Less: Amount paid for deferred financing fees {7.5)
Less: Armount paid on depaosit 1o collateralize open latlars of
credit issued under the terminatod Playlex credit agreement (4.4}
Total consideration from available cash 249.1
Total consideration $1,895.2

Playtex is a leading North American manufacturer and marketer in the
Skin, Feminine and Infant Care product categories, with a diversified
portfolio of well-recognized branded consumer products including
Banana Boat, Hawalian Tropic, Wet Ones, Playtex tampons, Playtex
infant feeding products, Playtex household gloves, and Playtex Diaper
Genie. Playtex operates six facilities in the U.S. The Acquisition will
allow the Company 1o expand its product portfolio and jyresence in

the Personal Care business, including achieving economies of scale in
salling and distribution. In addition, the Acquisition furthor diversifies the
Company’s product portfolio.

The falr values of assets and liahifities acquired for purposes of allocat-
ing the purchase price were determined in accordance with SFAS

No. 141, “Business Combinations”. The Company estimated a fair
value adjustment for inventory based on the estimated selling price of
finished goods en hand at the closing date less the sum of (a) costs

of disposat and {b) a reasonable profit allowance for the selfing effort

of the acquiring entity. The fair value adjustment for Playtex's property.
plant and equipment was established using a cost approach for the
operating fixed assets and comparable sales and propenty assessment
data for the valuation of fand. The fair values of Playtex’s identifiable
intangible assets wera estimated using various valuation methods includ-
ing discounted cash flows using both an income and cost approach,
Estimated deferred income tax impacts as a result of purchase
accounting adjustments are reflected using the best estmate of the
applicable statutory income tax rates.

The Company developed an integration plan, pursuant 1o which the
Company will incur costs related primarily to ivoluntary severance
costs, exit plans and contractual obligations with no future economic
benefit. The estimates of liabilities assumed were determined in accor-
dance with Emerging Issues Task Force 95-3 “Recognition of Liabilities
in Connection with a Purchase Business Combination”™ {EITF 95-3).
The Company has combined certain SG&A functions, and is pursuing
purchasing, manufacturing and logistics savings through increased
scale and coordination. The allocation of the purchase price reflects
estimated additional liabilities associated with employee termination
and relocation totaling $35.3, of which $31.0 has been spent as of
September 30, 2008 with the remaining $4.3 classified as a current
liability at September 30, 2008. Additional estimated litiilities assumed
include contract termination and other exit costs totaling $18.5, of
which $8.0 has been spent as of September 30, 2008 with the remain-
ing $8.5 and $2,0 classified as current liabilities and other liabilities,
respectivety, at September 30, 2008.
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The allocation of the purchase price is as follows:

Cash %131
Trada receivables, net 102.9
Inventeries 124.0
Cther current assets 37.0
Goodwill 826.2
Other intangitle assets 1,367.9
Other assets 03
Property, plant and equipment, net 182.1
Accounts payable 33.9)
Other current liabilities {169.0}
Other liabilities {525.4}
Met assets acquired $1,895.2

Goochwl] is not deductible for tax purposes. The purchased identifiable
intangible assets of $1,367.9 as of the October 1, 2007 acquisition date,
is included in the table below. Long-term deferred tax liabilities refated

to identifiable intangible assets are approximately $484 as of the
October 1, 2007 acquisition date, and are included in other liabilities

in the table above.

Amortization

Total Period

Trademarks $1,3139 iraefinlta-bved

Customer Relationships 43.9 10 years

Patants 8.1 7 years

Non-Coenpete 5.0 18 months
Total other intangible assets $1,367.9

The Company's results of operations include Playtex as of the date

of acquisition, or beginning October 1, 2007. In accordance with
GAAP, Playtex inventory acquired in the Acquisition was valued at its
estimated fair value on the date of acquisition. As a result, the fair value
of inventory was $27.5 greater than the historical cost basis of such
inventary prior to the Acquisition. This required accounting treatment
recluced grass profit in the twelve months ended September 30, 2008
by $27.5 compared to the historical Playtex cast basis.

Playtex acquired Tiki Hut Holding Company {"Hawaiian Tropic”), owner
of the Hawaiian Tropic brand on Apni 18, 2007. The pro forma results
below, reflect results tor Hawaitan Tropic only from the acquisition date
of April 18, 2007, They include incremental interest and financing costs
related to the Acquisition and purchase accounting adjustments includ-
ing the impact of increased depreciation and amortization expense. The
unaudited pro forma eamings staterment is based on, and should be
reacl in conjunction with the Company’s historical consolidated financial
statements and related notes, as well as Playtex historical consolidated
financial statements and related notes inciuded in the Form 8-K filing of
October 1, 2007, as amended on December 17, 2007.

The impacts of any revenue or cost synergies that may result from the
Acquisition are not included in the pro forma results. The Company has
generated cost synargies by combining certain SG&A functions, and
continues pursuing purchasing, manufacturing and logistics savings
through increased scale and coordination. Additional costs may be

incurred that will impact the Company's Consolidated Statements of
Earnings. The magnitude and timing of such synergies and costs are
still not fully known. Benefits from cost synergies began in fiscal year
2008, with total savings building throughout fiscal 2009 and 2010.

The following table represents the Company’s Unaudited Pro Forma
Condensed Combined Statement of Earnings as it the Acquisition
occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2007,

UNAUDITED PRQ FORMA
Twelve Moniths Ended
Septarmber 30, 2007
Net Sales
Household Products $2,376.3
Personal Care 1,694.1
Total net sales $4,070.4
Profitakbsility
Household Products $ 4723
Personal Care 271.2
Total segment profitability § 7435
General corporate and other expenses {1383)
Acquisition inventory valuation (29.4)
Amortization {12.5)
Interest and other financial items {192.2)
Eamings before income taxes $ 37
Income tax provision 88.1
Net eamings $ 283.0
Basic EPS $ 499
Dituted EPS $ 485
Weighted-Average Shares - Basic 56.7
Weighted-Average Shares - Diluted 58.3

4, GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND AMORTIZATION
Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite life are
not amortized, but reviewed annually for impairment of value. The
Company monitors changing business conditions, which may indicate
that the remaining useful life of goodwill and other intangible assets
may warrant revision or carrying amounts may require adjustment. As
part of its business planning cycle, the Company performed its annual
impairment test in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006.
Impairment testing was performed for each of the Company's reporting
units, Household Products, Wet Shave and Playtex. No impaiments
ware identiied and no adjustments were deemed necessary.

The following table represents the carrying amount of goodwill by
segment at September 30, 2008:

Houseahold Personal
Products Care Totad
Balanco at Cciober 1, 2007 $40.1 $ 3400 § 380.1
Acquisition of Playtex - 826.2 B826.2
Cumulative translation
adjustment (1.3} 1.4 0.1
Balance at September 30,
2008 $38.8 $1,167.6 $1,206.4
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The Company had indefinite-lived trademarks and tradenames of
$1,591.0 at Septernber 30, 2008 and $277.9 at September 30, 2007,
Changes in indefinite-fived trademarks and tradenames are due primarily
1o the valuation of assets acquired in the Playtex acguisition and changes
in foreign currency exchange rates.

Total armortizable intangible assets at September 30, 2008 are as follows.

The increase in the gross amortizable intangible assets during fiscat
2008 is primarily due to the valuation of assets acquired in the Playtex
acquisition. Amortizable intangible assets, with a weighted average
remaining life of approximately seven years, are amortized on a straight
line basis over expected lives of 18 months to 15 years.

Amortization expense for intangible assets totaled $14.6 for the current

Gross
Carmying Accumulated
Armount Amortization Net
Tradenames $ 1.7 $ 8.7} $50
Technology and patents a7 9.7 2290
Customer-refated 54.7 11.1) 436
Non-compete agreements 5.0 (3.4) 1.6
Total amortizable intangible
assets $113.1 $(40.9) §722

5. INCOME TAXES

year. Estimated amortization expense for amortized intangible assets
for the year ended Septernber 30, 2009 is approximately $12.4, $10.4
{or the years ended September 30, 2010 through 2012, and $7.9 for
the year ended September 30, 2013.

The provisions or income taxes consisted of the following for the years ended September 30:

2008 2007 2006
Cumently payable:

United States - Federal § 477 $ 864 £63.7

State 5.0 5.0 386

Forargn 64.2 50.0 51.7

Total current 116.9 141.4 118.0

Delerred:

United States - Federal 29.0 25.3) {15.8)

State 1.1 0.9 (0.6}

Foreign 3.1} 2.4 6.9

Total deferred 27.0 (28.6) (3.3
Provision for income taxes $143.9 31128 $95.7
The source of pre-tax earnings was:
2008 2007 2006
United States $197.9 $183.1 $160.2
Foreign 27153 251.1 196.4
Pro-lax eamings $473.2 $434.2 $356.6
A reconclliation of income taxes with the amounts computed at the statutory federal rate follows:
. 2008 2007

Computed tax at federal statutory rate $165.6 35.0% $152.0 35.0% $124.8 35.0%
State incame taxes, net of federal tax benefit 2.6 0.6 2.7 0.6 1.9 0.5
Foreign tax less than the federal rate (33.1} 7.0} {22.7) {5.2) {17.7) 5:40)
Foreign benafts recognized related to

prior years’ losses - - 4.3} g {5.7) (1.6}
Adjustments to prior years' tax accruals 1.1 0.2 7.9 (1.8} {10.94 @3.1)
Deferred tax benefit due to statutory rate change - - 9.0 2.2 - -
Cther 1axes on repatriation of foreign eamings 1.5 0.3 11.3 28 45 1.3
Nontaxable share option 57 1.2 6.1) (1.9) (3.8) .0
Qther, net 0.5 0.1 {0.5) 0.1} 2.6 0.7

Total $143.9 30.4% $112.8 26.0% $95.7 26.6%
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In 2007 and 2006, $4.3 and $5.7. respectively, of tax benefits refated
to prior years’ losses were recorded, These benefits related to foreign
countries where our subsidiary subsequently began to generate earn-
ings and could reasonably expect future profitability sufficient 1o utilize
tax loss canyforwards prior to expiration. Improved profitabiity in Mexico
in 2007 and 2006 account for the bulk of the benelits recognized,

Adjustments were recorded in aach of the three years to revise
praviously recorded tax accruals to reflect refinement of tax attribute
ostimatas to amounts in filed returns, settlement of {ax audits and
changes in estimates related to uncertain tax positions in a number

of jurisdictions. Such adjustments increased the income tax provision
by $1.1 in 2008 and decreased the income tax provision by $7.9 and
$10.9 in 2007 and 2006, respectively. Also, legislation enacted in Ger-
many reduced the tax rate applicable to the Company's subsidiaries in
Germany for fiscal 2008 and beyond. Thus, an adjustment of $9.7 was
made to reduce detarred tax [iabilities in fiscal 2007.

The deferred tax assets and deferred tax Eabilities recorded on the bal-
ance sheet as of September 30 for the years indicated are as follows
and include current and noncurrent amounts:

2008 2007

Deterred tax liabilties:
Depreciation and property differences $(108.1) $(71.0)
Intangible assets (528.4) {39.4)
Pension plans (11.3) (33.8)
Other tax liabiities (16.3) 9.8)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (664.1) (154.0)

Deforred tax assets:

Accrued liabilities 119.0 733
Defarred and stock-related compensation 89.2 923
Tax loss camyforwards and tax credits 15.2 21.2
Intangible assets 324 353
Postratirernent benefits other than pensions 54 10.6
Inventory ditferences 237 19.4
Other tax assets 181 19.0
Gross deferred tax assets 303.0 2711
Valuation allowance 9.1} (4.9)
Net deferrad tax (iablitiesy/assets $370.2) $112.2

There were no material tax loss carryforwards that expired in 2008.
Future expirations of tax foss camyforwards and tax credits, if not
utilized, are as follows: 2009, $0; 2010, $0.2; 2011, $0.2; 2012,
$1.3; thereafter or no expiration, $13.5. The valuation allowance

is attributed to tax loss camyforwards and tax credits outside the U.S.
Tha valuation allowance increased $4.2 in 2008 due primarily to the
Playtex acquisition.

At Septermber 30, 2008, approximately $650 of foreign subsidiary
retained earnings was considered indefinitely invested in those busi-
nesses. U.S. income taxes have not been provided for such earnings.
it is not practicable to determine the amount of unrecognized deferred
tax liabilities associated with such earnings.

The Company adopted the pravisions of FIN 48 on October 1, 2007.
At the date of adoption of FIN 48, the Company had $34.5 of unrecog-
nized tax benefits in the financial statements, excluding the unrecognized

tax benefit from the Playtex acquisition. Of this amount, the impact of
the cumulative change in accounting principle at adoption of FIN 48
was immaterial.

Unrecognized tax benefits activity for the year ended September 30,
2008 is summarized below:

2008
Unrecognized tax benatils, beginning of year $34.5
Additions based on curment year tax positions and acquisitions 14,3
Reductions for prior year tax positions (1.8)
Unrecognized tax benefits, end of year $47.0

included in the unrecognized tax benefits noted above are $43.5 of
uncertain tax positions that would affect the Company’s effective tax
rate, if recognized. The Company does not expect any significant
increases or decreases {0 their unrecognized tax bensfits within twelve
months of this reporting date. In the Consolidated Balance Sheets,
unrecognized tax banefits are ¢lassified as other Eabilities {non-current}
to the extent that payment is not anticipated within one year.

Prior to the adoption of FIN 48, only interest expense on underpay-
ments of income taxes was in¢luded in the income tax provision.
Penaltios were classified as an operating expense in arriving at pre-tax
income. Upon adoption of FIN 48, the Company elected a new
accounting policy, as permitted by FAIN 48, to also classify accrued
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in the income tax provi-
sion. The Company has accrued approximatety $5.8 of interest and
$0.7 of penalties in the income tax provision. Interest was computed
on the difference between the tax position recognized in accordance
with FIN 48 and the amount previously taken or expected to be taken
in the Company’s tax returns.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction,
various city, state, and more than 40 foreign jurisdictions where the
Company has operations. U.S. federal income tax returns for tax years
ended September 30, 2003 and after remain subject 10 examination
by the Internal Revenue Sarvice. With few exceptions, the Company is
no longer subject to stale and local income tex examinations for years
before September 30, 2002, The status of international income tax
examinations varies by jurisdiction. The Company does not anticipate
any material adjustrments to its financial statements resulting from tax
examinations currently in progress.

6. RESTRUCTURING AND RELATED CHARGES

The Company continually reviews its Household Products and Per-
sonal Care business models to identify potential improvements and
cost savings. A project commenced in 2006 to improve effectiveness
and reduce costs of European packaging, warehouse and distribution
activities, including the closing of the Company's battery packaging
faciity in Caudebec, France, as well as consolidation of warehouse
and distribution activities. The Company atso commenced a project to
integrate Household Products and Personal Gare commercial manage-
ment, sales and administrative functions in certain European countries.
In 2008, 2007 and 2006, total pre-tax charges related to these projects
were $3.2, $18.2 ang $37.4, respectively. Virtualty all of the costs in
2008 and 2007 were reflacted in SG&A expense. Total pre-tax charges
refated to the projects were $37.4 in fiscal 2006, and include exit costs
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of $28.2 which represented employes severance, contract termina-
tions and other exit costs, as well as $9.2 for other costs related to the
project. In 2006, $8.0 of these costs were reflected in cost of products
sold and $28.4 in SG&A expense. The remaining exit cost liability for
these projects at September 30, 2008 is immaterial.

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

For each period presented below, basic eamings per share is based on
the average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is based on the average number of shares used for
the basic eamings per share calculation, adjusted for the dilutive effect
of stock options and restricted stock equivalents.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted
eamings per share (shares in millions):

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 2007 2008
Numerator:
Net samings for basic and
diutive earmings per share $329.3 $321.4 $260.9
Denominator:
Weightad-average shares —
basic 57.8 56.7 61.2
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options 0.7 1.0 14
Rastricted stock equivalents 0.6 0.6 0.5
Total dilutive securities 1.3 1.6 19
Weighted-averaga shargs —
diuted 58.9 58.3 63.1
Basic net eamings per share $ 5N $ 567 $ 428

Dituted net eatnings per share $ 559 $ 551 $ 414
At September 30, 2008, approximately 0.4 million of the Company's
outstanding restricted stock equivalents were not included in the
diluted net earnings per share calculation because to do so would
have been anti-diutive. In the event the potentially dilutive securities are
anti-dilutive on net earnings per share (.e., have the effect of increas-
ing EPS), the impact of the potentially dilutive securities is not included
in the computation. There were no anti-dilutive securities for the years

ended Septernber 30, 2007 or 2006.

8. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company's 2000 Incentive Stock Plan (the Plan) was adopted by
the Board of Directors in March 2000 and approved by shareholders,
with respect to future awards, which may be granted under 1he Plan, at
the 2001 Annual Mesting of Sharehclders. Under the Plan, awards of
restricted stock, restricted stock equivalents or options to purchase the
Company's common stock (ENR stock) may be granted to directors,
officers and key employees, A maximum of 15,0 million shares of ENR
stock was approved to be issued under the Plan. At September 30,
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, there were 2.8 million, 3.3 million
and 3.7 milion shares available for future awards.

Options under the Plan have been granted at the market price on the
grant date and generally vest ratably over four to seven years. These
awards have a maximum term of 10 years. Restricted stock and
restricted stock equivalent awards may also be granted under the Plan,

Under the terms of the Plan, option shares and prices, and restricted
stock and stock equivalent awards, are adjusted in conjunction with
stock splits and other recapitalizations so that the holder is in the same
economic position before and after these equity transactions.

The Company permits deferrals of bonus and salary and for directors,
retainers and fees, under the terms of its Deferred Compensation Plan.
Under this plan, employees or directors deferring amounts into the
Energizer Common Stock Unit Fund are credited with a number of
stock equivalents based on the fair value of ENR stock at the time of
deferral. In addition, the participants are credited with an additional
number of stock equivalents, equal to 25% for employees and 33 1/3%
for directors, of the amount deferred. This additional company match
vests immediately for directors and three years from the date of initial
crediting for employees. Amounts deferred into the Energizer Com-
mon Stock Unit Fund, and vested company matching deferrals, may
be transferred to other investment options offered under the plan after
specified restriction periods. At the time of termination of employment,
or for directors, at the time of termination of service on the Board, or
at such other time for distribution which may be elected in advance by
the participant, the number of equivalents then vested and credited to
the participant’s account is determined and then an amount in cash
equal to the fair value of an equivalent number of shares of ENR stock
is paid to the participant. This plan is reflected in Other Liabilities on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The Company uses the straight-line method of recognizing compen-
sation cost. Total compensation cost charged against ircome for the
Company’s share-based compensation arrangements was $26.4,
$25.3 and $16.0 for the years ended September 30, 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively, and was recorded in SG&A expense. The total
income tax benefil recognized in the Consolidated Statements of
Eamings for share-based compensation arrangements was $9.6, $9.2
and $5.9 for the years ended September 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Restricted stock issuance and shares issued for stock
option exercises under the Company's share-based compensation
program are generally issued from treasury shares.

Options As of September 30, 2008, the aggregate infrinsic value of
stock options outstanding and stock options exercisabliz was $77.5
and $74.0, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options
exercised for the years ended September 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006
was $36.7, $107.8 and $34.0, respectively. When valuing new grants,
Energizer uses an implied volatitty, which reflects the expected volatility
for a period equal to the expected life of the option. No new option
awards were granted in the years ended September 30, 2008,

2007 and 2006.

As of September 30, 2008, there was no unrecognized compensation
costs related to stock options granted, For outstanding nonqualified
stock options, the weighted average remaining contractual ke is

3.8 years.
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The fallowing table summarizes nonqualified ENR stock option activity
during the current year {shares in millions):

Weighted-
Average

Exors
Sheres Price
Qutstanding on October 1, 2007 2.24 $27.74
Exercised {0.66) 19.45
Cancefled {0.01) 26.70
Qutstanding on September 30, 2008 1.57 31.24
Exercisable on September 30, 2008 1.47 $30.14

Restricted Stock Equivalents (RSE) In October 2005, the Board of
Directors approved two different grants of RSE. First, a grant to key
employees, included approximately 73,000 shares that vest ratably
over four years. The second grant for 8C,000 shares was awarded to
a group of key senior executives and consists of two pieces: 1} 25%
of the total restricted stock equivalents granted vest on the third anni-
versary of the date of grant; 2) the remainder vests on the date that the
Company publicly releases its earnings for its 2008 fiscal year, which
was October 30, 2008, contingent upon the Company’s compound
annual growth in earnings per share (CAGR) for the thres year period
ending on September 30, 2008. If a CAGR of 10% Is achieved, an
additional 25% of the grant vests. The remaining 50% vests in its
entirety only if the Company achieves a CAGR at or above 15%, with
smaller percentages of that remaining 50% vesting if the Company
achieves a CAGR between 11% and 15%. The Company achieved

a CAGR in excess of the 15% target for the three year period ended
September 30, 2008. Thus, all performance shares for this particular
portion of the October 2005 grant vested on Cctober 30, 2008.

In October 2008, the Board of Directors approved two grants of RSE.
First, a grant to key employees included 112,350 shares that vest
ratably over four years, The second grant for 303,000 shares was
awarded to key senior executives with similar performance and vesting
requirements to the RSE award granted in 2005, as described above.
The total award expected to vest is amortized over the vesting period.

In October 2007, the Company granted RSE awards to key employ-
ees which included approximately 219,800 shares that vest ratably
over four years and 11,000 that vest ratably over two years. At the
same time, the Company granted RSE awards to key senior execu-
tives totaling approximatety 267,000 shares which vest as follows; 1)
25% of the total restricted stock equivalents granted vest on the third
anniversary of the date of grant; 2) the remainder vesis on the date
that the Company publicly releases its earnings for its 2010 fiscal year
contingent upon the Company’'s CAGR for the three year period ending
on September 30, 2010. If a CAGR of 15% is achieved, the remaining
75% of the grant vests, with smaller percentages of the remaining 75%
vesting if the Company achieves a CAGR between 8% and 15%. The
fotal award expected {o vest is amartized over the vesting period.

The Company records estimated expense for the performance based
grants based on the cumulative program-to-date CAGR for each
respeclive program unless evidence exists that a different ultimate
CAGR is likely to occur.

The following table summarizes RSE activity during the current year
(shares in millions):

Weignted-
Avernga

Gram Cata

Shares Fair Value

Nonvested RSE at October 1, 2007 0.79 $57.34
Granted .53 116.08
Vested [0.106) 59.19
Cancelled (0.02) 96.07
Nonvested RSE at September 30, 2008 1.20 $82.24

As of September 30, 2008, there was an estimated $44.3 of total
unrecognized compensation costs refated to RSE granted under

the Plan, which will be recognized over a weighted-average period

of approximately 1.4 years. The actual amount recognized may vary
depending on the actual CAGR achieved. The weighted-average fair
value for RSE granted in 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $116.08, $73.68
and $52.81, respectively, The fair value of RSE vested in 2008, 2007
and 2006 was $10.4, $9.2 and $6.9, respectively.

In October 2008, the Company granted RSE awards to key employees
which included approximately 265,200 shares that vest ratably over
four years, At the same time, the Company granted RSE awards to key
senior exacutives totaling approximately 374,600 which vest as follows:
1} 25% of tha total restricted stock equivalents granted vest on the third
anniversary of the date of grant; 2) the remainder vests on the date

that the Company publicly releasas its earnings for its 2011 fiscal year
contingent upon the Company’s CAGR for the three year period ending
on September 30, 2011. tf a CAGR of 15% §s achieved, the remaining
75% of the grant vests, with smaller percentages of the remaining 75%
vesting if the Company achieves a CAGR between 8% and 15%. The
total award expected to vest will be amortized over the vesting period.,

Other Share-Based Compensation During the quarter ended
December 31, 2005, the Board of Directors approved an award for
officars of the Company. This award totaled 196,800 share equivalents
and has the same features as the restricted stock award granted to
senior executives in October 2005 as discussed above, but will be
settled in cash and mandatorily deferred until the individual's retirement
or other termination of employment. During 2007, 20,000 shares were
forfeited. All rermaining 176,800 share equivalents fully vested as of
October 30, 2008 and the Company recorded pre-tax income of $4.4
in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 to reflect the mark to markat for this
grarit frorn October 1, 2008 through the October 30, 2008 vesting date.

9. PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS
The Company has several defined benefit pension plans covering
substantially all of its employees in the U.S. and certain employees in
other countries. The plans provide retirsment benefits based on years
of senvice and earnings.

The Company also sponsors of participates in a number of other
non-U.S. pension arrangements, including various retirement and
termination benefit plans, some of which are required by local law or
coordinated with government-sponsored plans, which are not signiti-
cant in the aggregate and therefore are not included in the information
presented in the following tables.
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The Company currently provides other postretiremant benefits, con-
sisting of heafth care and life insurance benefits for cenain groups of
retired employees. Certain retiress are eligible for a fixed subsidy, pro-
vided by the Company, toward their total cost of health care benefits.
Retiree contributions for health care benefits are adjusted periodically

The Company adopted SFAS 158 on September 30, 2007, on the
required prospective basis. We use a September 30 measurement
date for our defined peneﬂt pension and postretirerent plans.

The following tables present the benefit obligation, plan assets and

to cover the entire increase in total plan costs. Cost frend rates no funded status of the plans:
longer materialty impact the Company's future cost of the plan,
Pansion Postretirement

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 2007 2008 2007

Change in Projected Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation at boginning of year 58154 $790.9 $355 $51.6
Impact of Playtex acquisition 69.6 - 8.1 -
Service cost 3.9 29.9 0.4 0.4
Interast cost 50.6 413 25 2.9
Plan participants' contributions 1.1 1.2 - -
Actuarial gain {167.7) {28.8} (2.9} (17.6}
Benefits paid {48.5) {42.3) 2.7 (2.5
Plan amendments {2.6) - {2.9) -
Plan settlements 6.8) - - -
Foreign cumency exchange rate changes (5.0} 23.2 {0.3} 07
Projected Bensfit Obligation at end of year $ 800.0 $815.4 $37.7 $355

Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year §7985.2 $704.8 $ 20 $ 24
Impact of Playtex acquisition 61.4 - - -
Actual return on plan assets (118.7) 100.0 o1 0.1
Company contributions 18.7 18.2 2.3 2.0
Ptan participants’ contribtions 1.1 1.2 4.0 41
Benafits paid (48.5) 42.3) (8.7 {6.6)
Plan settlements (6.8} - - -
Foreign cumency exchange rate changes (6.4} 13.3 - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 696.0 $795.2 $ 17 $ 20

Fundad status at end of year $(104.0) $(20.2) $(36.0} $33.5}

The fallowing table presents the amouriis recognized in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity.

Pension Postretirernent

Changes recognized in other comprehensive income for the year ended
Septerber 30, 2008 are as follows:

Pension  Postretirernent

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 2007 2008 2ca7

Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Noncurrent assets $ 425 $ 1252 $ - $ -
Current liabilities {6.5)} 8.2) {1.9) {0.9)
Noncurrent Eabilities (140.0} {139.2) (34.1) (32.6)

Net amount recognized ${104.0} $ (20.2) $(36.0} $33.5)

Amounts Recognized in Accumutated Cther Comprehensive Incorme

Net loss/{gain) 106.6 38.2 (27.0) (26.4)
Prior servica cost (credit) 9.7 {7.4) (26.7) (25.9)
Transition obfigation 14 1.8 - -
Mgt amount recognized,

pro-tax $ 98.3 § 326 $(53.7} ${52.3)

Changes in plan assets arcd benefit
obligations recognized in other
comprehensive income

MNew prior service cost $1(2.6) $2.9)
Net koss/(gain) arising during the year 74,3 (2.8
Effect of exchange rates on amounts includsd

in AQCI 2.3 0.1

Amounts recognized as a component of
net periodic benefit cost

Armortization, settiement or curtailment

recognition of net transition asset (obligs_:lion) 0.5 -
Armortization or curtailiment recognition of prior

service credit (cost) 0.6 21
Armortization or sattlement recognition of net

gain/{loss} (3.8) 2.1
Total recognized in other comprehensive

{oss/(Income) . - $656.7 - $(1.4) .
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On September 30, 2007, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158,
“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postre-
tirement Plans - an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88,

106 and 132(R}". The table below refiects the impact of adopting the
provisions of SFAS No. 158 on the components of the Consoiidated
Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2007:

Pernsion plan assets in the U.S. plan represent 79% of assets in at

of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans. Investment pelicy for
the U.S. plan includes a mandate to diversify assets and invest in a
variety of asset classes to achieve that goal. The U.S. plan's assets are
currently invested in several funds representing most standard equity
and debt security classas, The broad target allocations are: {a) equi-
ties, including U.S. and foreign: 54%, {b) debit securities, including U.S.

Betore After bonds; 41% and (¢} other: 5%. The U.S. plan held no shares of ENR
RIS A e stock at Septermber 30, 2008, Investment objectives are simitar for
Other Assets s 1947 S 65 $ 2012 non-UL.S. pension arrangements, subject to tocal regutations.
Total Assets 3,546.5 6.5 3,553.0
Other Current Liabilites 606.9 5.4 6143 Amounts expected to be amortized from accumulated other com-
Other Liabilitias” 423.9 (9.7 404.2 prohensive income into net period benefit cost during Lhe year ending
Total Lisblities 2,013.4 (14.3) 2,809.1 September 30, 2009, are as follows:
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive iIncome 26.0 20.8 46.8 Pension  Postretirement
Total Shareholders’ Equity £33.1 20.8 653.9 Net actuarial (losg)/gain (2.8) 2.1
Total Liabiities and Prior service credit 1.5 2.3
Sharcholders” Equity $3.546.5 $ 6.5 $3,553.0 Initiat net obligation 0.4) _

*Includes Deferred ncame Tax Eablity ackrstment of $15.7.

The Company expects to contribute $16.5 to its pension plars in 2008.
The Company's expected huture benefit payments are as follows:

The following table presents assumptions, which reflect weighted-
averages for the component plans, used in determining the indicated

information:
Pension Postretirement

SEPTEMBER 30. Pension  Postretirerent PYTy——— 2008 P prws 7007
2009 $45.9 $3.6 Plan cbligations:
2010 6.8 38 Discount rats 7.0% 58%  7.5% 6.0%
201 0.1 8.4 Compeonsation increass rate 4.2% 3.9% 3.9% 3.5%
ig:; :;j 22 Nat periodic benefit cost:

' ’ Discount rate 5.9% 5.3% 6.0% 5.7%
14102018 3585 140 Expected long-term rate of 8.0% 8.0% 37% 5.5%

return on plan assets
The accumutated benefit obligation for defined benefit pension plans Compensation increaso rale 4.0% 218% 3.5% 3.6%
was $716.8 and §727.2 at September 30, 2008 and 2007, respec-
tively. The information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit
obligation in excess of plan assets is as follows:
SEFTEMBER 30, 2008 2007
Projectad benefit obligation $189.2 $200.8
Accumulated benefit obligation 162.9 169.7
Fair value of plan assets 45.8 53.5
The following table presents pension and postretirerment expense:
Pension Postretirement

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Senvics cost $33.9 $29.9 $26.3 $04 $0.4 $0.3
Interest cost 50.6 41.3 384 25 2.8 3.3
Expected return on plan assels (83.3) (53.2) {49.8} (0.) {0.1) .1
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost (.6) (1.1) 0.2} {2.1) {2.2) 2.2
Amortization of unrecognized transition asset 0.5 0.4 0.7 - - -
Recognized net actuarlal loss/(gain) as 6.9 6.2 2.1 0.3 0.1
Net periodic benefit cost 524.9 $24.2 $21.6 5(1.4) $0.6 $1.4
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The expected retum on plan assets was determined based on historical
and expected future returns of the various asset classes, using the target
allocations described below. Specifically, the expected return on equities
{U.S. and foreign combined) is 9.5%, and the expected retum on debt
securities (including higher-quality and lower-quality bonds} is 5.5%.

10. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Company sponsors a defined contribution plan, which extends
participation efigibility to substantially all U.S. employees. The Com-
pany matches 50% of participants’ before-tax contributions up to 6%
of efigible compensation. In addition, participants can make after-tax
contributions into the plan. The participant's after-tax contribution of
1% of eligible compensation is matched with a 325% Company contri-
bution to the participant’s pension plan account. Amounts charged to
expense during fiscat 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $8.5, $5.6 and 55.4,
respectively, and are refiected in SG&A and cost of products sold in
the Consolidated Statements of Earnings. The increase in expense for
2008 was due primarily to the addition of Playtex.

11, DEBT

Notes payable at September 30, 2008 and 2007 consisted of notes
payable to financial institutions with original maturities of less than one
vear of 8264.4 and $43.0, respectively, and had a weighted-average
interest rate of 4.7% and 6.7%, respectively.

The detall of long-term debt at September 30 for the year indicated is
as follows:

2008 2007

Private Placement, fixed interest rates ranging $2,230.0 $1.4750
from 4.2% to 7.3%, due 2009 to 2017
Term Loan, variable interest at LIBOR + 100
basis points, or 5.056%, due 2012 485.5 -
Singapore Bank Syndication, mutti-currency
facility, variabla interest at LIBOR + 80 basis

points, or 4.85%, due 2010 - 107.0
Total tong-term debt, inchuding current maturities 2,605.5 1,582.0
Loss current portion 106.0 2100

Total long-tenm debt $2,589.5 $1,372.0

The Company maintains total committed debt facilities of $3,449.9, of
which $479.0 remained available as of Septemnber 30, 2008.

Under the terms of the Company's debt faciities, the ratio of the
Company's indebtedness to its EBITDA cannot be greater than 4.00 to
1, and may not remain above 3.50 to 1 for more than four consecutive
quarters. If the ratio is above 3.50 to 1, the Company is required to pay
an additional 75 basis points in interest for the period in which the ratio
exceeded 3.50 to 1. In addition, the ratio of its current year Earnings
Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT) to total interest expense must exceed
3.00 to 1. The Company’s ratio of indebtedness to its pro forma
EBITDA, as defined in the agreements, was 3.25 to 1, and the ratio of

its pro forma EBIT, as defined in the agreements, to total interest
expense was 3.91 to 1 as of September 30, 2008. As a result of the
ratio of indebtedness to pro forma EBITDA during fiscal 2008, which
was above 3.50 1o 1 {or the period from January 1, 2008 through

September 30, 2008, at which time the ratio reduced to 3.25to , the
Company had higher pre-tax interest expense on fixed borrowings of
approximately $13.0 for the current year. Failure to comply with the
above ratics or other covenants could result in acceleration of maturity,
which could trigger cross defaults on other borrowings. The Company
believes that covenant violations, which may result in acceleration

of maturity, are unlikety. The Company's fixed rate debt is callable by
the Company, subject to a “make whole” premium, which would be
required to the extent the undertying benchmark U.S. treasury yield has
declined since issuance.

‘The Company routinely sefis a pool of ULS. accounts recaivable through
a financing arrangement between Energizer Receivables Funding
Corporation {the SPE}, which is a bankruptey-remote special purpose
entity subsidiary of the Company, and outside parties (the Conduits).
Under the current structure, funds received from the Cenduit are
treated as borrowings rather than proceeds of accounts receivables
sold for accounting purposes. Borrowings under this program receive
favorable treatment in the Company's debt compliance covenants. The
program renews annually in May, Further deterioration in credit markets
could resuft in an inability to renew the program or renewal on less
favorable termns, which may negatively impact complianze reported
Debt-t0-EBITDA and may require the Company to draw on other
available committed debt facifities.

The counterparties to long-term committed borrowings consist of

a number of major international financial institutions, The Company
continually menitors positions with, and credit ratings of, counterparties
both internalty and by using outside ratings agencies. The Company
has staggered long-term borrowing maturities through 2017 1o mini-
mize refinancing risk in any single year and Lo optimize the use of free
cash flow for repayment,

Aggregate maturities on long-term debt at September 30, 2008 are as
follows: $106.0 in 2009, $301.0in 2010, $266.0in 2011, $231.0in
2012, $701.5in 2013 and $1,090.0 thereafter.

12. PREFERRED STOCK

The Company's Articles of Incorporation authorize the Company to
issue up to 10 million shares of $0.01 par value of preferred stock.
During the three years ended September 30, 2008, thers were no
shares of preferred stock outstanding.

13. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

On March 16, 2000, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of

one share purchase right (Right} for each outstanding share of ENR
common stock. Each Right entitles a sharehotder of ENR stock to
purchase an additional share of ENR stock at an exercise price of
$150.00, which price is subject to anti-ditlution adjustments. Rights,
however, may only be exercised if a person or group has acquired, or
commenced a public tender for 20% or more of the outstanding ENR
stock, unless the acquisition is pursuant to a tender or exchange offer
for all outstanding shares of ENR stock and a majority of the Board of
Directors determines that the price and terms of the offer are adequate
and in the best interests of sharehclders (a Pemmitted Offer), At the time
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that 20% or more of the outstanding ENR stock is actually acquired
{other than in connection with a Permitted Offer), the exercise price of
each Right will be adjusted so that the holder {other than the person
or member of the group that made the acquisition) may then purchase
a share of ENR stock at one-third of its then-current market price. if
the Company merges with any other person or group after the Rights
become exercisabla, a holder of a Right may purchase, at the exercise
price, common stock of the sunviving entity having a value equal 1o
twice the exercise price, If the Company transfers 50% or more of its
assets or earnings power to any other person or group after the Rights
become exercisable, a holder of a Right may purchase, at the exercise
price, common stock of the acquiring entity having a velue equal to
twice the exercise price.

The Company can redeem the Rights at a price of $0.01 per Right at
any time prior to the time a person o group actualy acquires 20% or
more of the outstanding ENR stock (other than in connection with a
Permitted Offer). In addition, following the acquisition by a person or
group of at least 20%, but not more than 50% of the outstanding ENR
stack {other than in connection with a Permitted Offer), the Company
may exchange gach Right for one share of ENR stock. The Company's
Board of Directors may amend the terms of the Righis at any fime prior
to the time a person or group acquires 20% or more of the outstanding
ENR stock (other than in connection with a Permitted Offer) and may
amend the terms to lower the threshold for exercise of the Rights. If the
threshold is reduced, it cannot be lowered 10 a percentage that is less
than 10% or, if ary shareholder holds 10% or more of the outstanding
ENR stock at that time, the reduced threshold must be greater than
the percentage held by that shareholder. The Rights will expire on

April 1, 2010.

At September 30, 2008, there were 300 million shares of ENR stock
authorized, of which approximately 3.0 milion shares were reserved for
issuance under the 2000 Incentive Stock Plan.

Beginning in September 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors has
approved a series of resolutions authorizing the repurchase of shares
of ENR common stock, with no commitments by the Company to
repurchase such shares. On July 24, 2006, the Board of Directors
approved the repurchase of up to an additional 10 million shares and
8 milion shares rermain under such authorization as of September 30,
2008, There were no shares repurchased during fiscat year 2008.

14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Foreign Cummency Contracts At times, the Company enters into
foreign exchange forward contracts and, to a lesser extent, purchases
options and enters into zero-cost option collars to mitigate potential
losses in earnings or cash flows on foreign currency transactions. The
Company has not designated these financial instruments as hedges
for accounting purposes for the year ended Septermber 30, 2008. The
Company recorded a pre-tax 10ss of $1.3 associated with the foreign
currency contracts. Foreign currency exposures are primarily related
to anticipated intercompany purchase transactions and intercompany
borrowings. Other foreign currency transactions to which the Company
is exposed include external purchase transactions and intercompany
receivables, dividends and service fees.

The contractual amounts of the Company’s forward exchange con-
tracts were $71.1 and $67.1 in 2008 and 2007, respectively. These
contractual amounts represent transaction volume outstanding and do
not represent the amournt of the Company’s exposure to credit or mar-
ket loss. Foreign currency contracts are generally for one year or less.

Derivative Securities The Company uses raw materials that are sub-
ject to price volatility. Hedging instruments are used by the Company
as it desires to reduce exposure to varability in cash fiows associated
with future purchases of zing or other commoedities. These hedging
instruments are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as cash flow hedges.
To qualify for hedge accounting, the Company uses a regression madel
to determine effectiveness and expects there to be a high correlation
between the hedging instruments and raw material purchases. At
September 30, 2008, the fair market value of the Company’s out-
standing hedging instruments was an unreatized pre-tax loss of $9.8.
Reatlized gains and losses are reflected as adjustments to the cost of
the raw materials. Over the next twelve months, approximatety $9.2 of
the loss recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income will
be recognized in earnings. The impact of hedge ineffectiveness was
immaterial in 2008. Contract maturities for these hedges extend into
fiscal year 2010.

Share Options A portion of the Company’s deferred compensation
liabilities is based on Company stock price and is subfect to market risk.

At September 30, 2007, the Company held a net-cash setlled prepaid
share option with & major multinational financial institulion 1o mitigate
the impact of changes in the Company's deferred compensation
liabilities. In Decermber 2007, the prepaid feature was removed from
the transaction and the Company received cash of $60.5, which was
used to repay existing debt. Of the $60.5 received, $46.0 was a return
of investment and was classified within investing activities on the State-
ment of Cash Flows, The remaining $14.5 was a return on investment
and was classified as a cash inflow from operating activilies on the
Statement of Cash Flows. As a result of this change in the share
option, the Company will incur yearly fees at LIBOR plus 230 basis
points untit the contract is settled. The fair market value of the share
option was $2.4, as included in other cument liabiliies, and $59.3, as
included in other current assets, at September 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectivety, with approximately 0.5 million share options outstanding
at Septemiber 30, 2008 and 2007. The change in fair vatue of the total
share option for the twelve months ended September 30, 2008 and
2007 resulted in expense of $16.2 and income of $23.2, respectively,
and was recorded in SG&A.

Concentration of Credit Risk The counterparties to foreign curency
contracts consist of a number of major muttinational and interna-

fiona! financial institutions and are generally institutions with which

the Company maintains lines of credit. The Company does not enter
into foreign exchange contracts through brokers nor does it trade
foreign exchange contracts on any other exchange or over-the-counter
rmarkets. Risk of currency positions and mark-to-market valuation of
positions are strictly monitored at all times.
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The Company continually monitors positions with, and credit ratings

of, counterparties both internally and by using outside rating agencies.
The Company has implemented policies that limit the amaount of agree-
ments it enters into with any one party. While nonperformance by these
counterparties exposes the Company to potertial credil losses, such
losses are not anticipated although the current economic environment
makes such assessments mora challenging.

The Company sells to a large number of customers primarily in the
retail trade, including those in mass merchandising, drugstore, super-
market and other channels of distribution throughout the world. The
Company performs ongoing evaluations of s customers' financiat
condition and creditworthiness, but does not generally require coliat-
eral. The Company's largest customer had obligations to the Company
with a carmying value of $122.3 at September 30, 2008. While the com-
petitiveness of the retall industry presents an inherent uncertainty, the
Company does not beteve a significant risk of loss from a concentra-
tion of credit risk exists with respect to accounts receivabie.

Financial Instruments The Company's financial instruments include
cash and cash equivalents, short-term and long-term debt and foreign
currency contracts. Due to the nature of cash and cash equivalents
and short-term borrowings, including notes payable, carrying amounts
on the balance sheet approximate fair value.

At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the fair market value of fixed rale
long-term debt was $2,078.5 and $1,423.1, respectively, compared 1o
its carrying value of $2,230.0 and $1,475.0, respectively. The increase
in fixed rate debt at September 30, 2008 was due to borrowings to
complete the Playtex acquisition. The book value of the Company's
variable rate debt approximates fair value. The fair value of the long-
term deb is estimated using vields obtained from independent pricing
sources for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

The fair value of foreign currency contracts is the amount that the
Company would receive or pay to terminate the contracts, consider-
ing first, quoted market prices of comparable agreements, or in the
absence of quoted market prices, such factors as interest rates,
currency exchange rates and remaining maturities. Based on these
considerations, the Company would make an insignificant payment or
outstanding foreign currency contracts at September 30, 2008 and
2007. However, these payments are unlikely due to the fact that the
Company enters into foreign cumency contracts to hedge identifiable
foreign currency exposures, and as such would generally not terminate
such contracts.

15. ENVIRONMENTAL AND LEGAL MATTERS

Government Regulation and Environmental Matters The opera-
tions of the Company, like those of other companies engaged in the
Household Products and Personal Care businesses, are subject to
various federal, state, foreign and local laws and regulations intendead
to protect the public health and the environment, These regulations
primarily relate to worker safety, air and water quality, underground fuel

storage tanks and waste handling and disposal. The Company has
received notices from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, state
agencies and/or private parties seeking contribution, that it has been
identifiedt as a "potentially responsible party” (PRP} under the Compre-
hensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, and
may be required to share in the cost of cleanup with respect 1o seven
federal “Superfund” sites. It may also be required to share in the cost
of cleanup with respect to two state-designated sites or other sites
outside of the U.S.

Accrued environmental costs at September 30, 2008 were $11.8, of
which $1.7 is expected to be spent in fiscal 2009, This sicerual is not
measured on a cfiscounted basis. It is difficult lo quantily with certainty
the cost of environmental matters, particularly remediation and future
capital expenditures for environmental control equipment. Neverthe-
less, based on information currently available, the Company believes
the possihility of material environmental costs in excess of the accrued
amount is remote. -

As a resutt of the Playtex acquisition certain of the Company’s products
are subject to regutation by the United States Food and Drug Adminis-
tration (FDA).

Legal Proceedings The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to
a number of legal proceedings in various jurisdictions arising out of the
operations of its businesses. Many of these legal matters are in pre-
timinary stages and involve complex issues of law and fact, and may
proceed for protracted periods of time. The amount of liability, if any,
from these proceadings cannot be determined with certainty. However,
based upon present information, the Company believes that its ufti-
mate liability, if any, arising from pending legal proceedings, asserted
legal claims and known potential legal claims which are likely to be
asserted, should not be material {o the Company’s financial position,
taking into account established accruals for estimated liabilities.

16. OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

An international affiliate of the Cormpany has $7.9 of funds deposited
in a bank account that is acting as collateral for a bank Ioan. The
Company has reflected this bank deposit as restricted cash, which is
included in other current assets on the Censolidated Ba'ance Sheets.
The loan was initiated in June 2004 for a three month period. At each
maturity, the Company renewed the agreement. As the I2an amount
changes, the funds on deposit will be required to increase or decrease
with the loan amount. The impact of this transaction is roflected in the
investing section of the Consolidated Staternents of Cash Flows.

Total rental expense for all operating leases was $28.9, 528.0 and
$27.1 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Future minimum rental
commitments under noncancellable operating leases in <ffect as of
September 30, 2008, were $18.5in 2009, $14.7 in 2010, $10.7 in
2011, $6.3in 2012, $4.6 in 2013 and $7.2 thereafter. These leases
are primarily for office facilities.
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17. SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION
The components of certain balance sheet accounts at September 30 for the years indicated are as follows:

2008 2007
Inventories
Raw materials and supplies $ 777 $ 651
Work in process 137.% 109.4
Finished products 459.0 407.8
Total inventories S €746 $ 582.3
Other Current Assels
Miscellaneous receivabiles $ 471 $ 411
Defarred income tax. benefits 119.7 91.2
Prepaid expenses 75.7 68.1
Share option - 59.3
Cther 15.3 10.8
Total ther cument assets $§ 257.8 $ 2705
Property at Cost
Land $ 373 § 253
Buildings 251.9 206.7
Machinery and equiprment ’ 1,459.0 1,204.0
Construction in progress 1154 54,5
Total gross property 1,863.6 1,580.5
Accumulated depreciation - 1,028.1 a30.6
Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 835.5 $ 649.9
Other Assets
Pension asset $ 425 $ 1252
Defemed income tax benafits - 21.0
Deferved charges and other assets 423 348
Total other assets $ 848 $ 1810
Other Current Liabilities
Accrued advertising, promotion and allowances $ 3243 $ 3068
Accrued salaries, vacations and incentive compensation - 123.0 121
Returns reserve 47.8 -
Other 233.8 188.3
Total gther current liabilities $ 7289 $ 607.2
Other Liabilities
Pensions and ather retrement benefits $ 176.7 $ 1753
Deferred compensation 138.8 161.6
Deferred income tax liabililies 489.9 -
Other noncurrent liablities 83.8 471

Tolal other abilities S 869.2 $ 384.0
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ALL OWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

2008 2007 2006
Batancs at beginning of year $ 98 $10.9 $12.5
Impect of Playtex acquisition 4.0 - -
Provision charged to expense, net of reversals 0.2) {0.2) -
Wiite-offs, less recovaries, transtation, other (24) {0.9) (.6
Balance at end of year $ 11.2 $ 98 $10.9
INCOME TAX VALUATION ALLOWANCE

2008 2007 2008
Batance at beginning of year $ 4.9 $10.7 $15.1
Impact of Playtex acquisition 5.0 - -
Prowision charged to expense 01 0.5 1.8
Reversal of provision charged to expense {©.9) 4.3) 5.7
Write-offs, translation, other (0.5) {2.0) {0.5)
Balance at end of yoar $ 91 $ 49 $10.7
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2008 2007 2006
Intevest paid $1436 $90.4 £66.7
Income taxes paid 90.6 108.5 113.3

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION

In the first quanter of fiscal 2008, the Company revised its operating
segment presentation. Operations for the Comparny are managed via
two segments - Household Products (Battery and Lighting Products)
and Personal Care (wet shave, skin, faminine and infant care), Segment
performance is evalualed based on segment operating profit, exclusive
of general corporate expenses, share-based compensation costs,
cosis associated with most restructuring, integration or business
realignment activities and amortization of intangible assets. Financial
items, such as interest income and expense, are managed on a global
basis at the corporate level.

The reduction in gross profit associated with the write-up and subse-
quent sale of the inventory acquired in the Playtex acquisition and the
acquisition integration costs for the Playtex acquisition are not reflecied
in the Personal Care segment, but rather presented as a separate

line item below segment profit, as it is a non-recurring itern direcily
associated with the Playtex acquisition. Such presentation refiects
management's view on how it evaluates segment performance.

The Company's operating model includes a combination af stand-alone
and combined business functions between the Household Products and
Persona Care businesses, varying by country and region of the world.
Shared tunctions include product warehousing and distribution, various
transaction processing functions, and in some countries, combined
sales forces and management. The Company applies a fully allocated
cost basis, in which shared business functions are allocated between
the businesses. Such allocations do not represent the costs of such
services if performed on a stand-alone basis. The Company applies a
fully attocated cost basis in which shared business functions are
allocated between the businesses.

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and its subsidiaries accounted for 20.8%, 18.8%
and 18.5% of total net sales in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively,
primarity n North America, Corporate assets shown in the: following
table inciude at cash and cash equivalents, financial instnuments,
pension assets and deferred tax assets that are managed outside of
operating segments.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Doliars in mitions, except per share and percentage data)

2008 2007 2008
Net Sales
Household Products $2,4743 $2,376.3 $2,1471
Perscnal Care 1,856.7 088.8 929.8
Total not sales $4,321.0 $3,365.1 $3.076.9
Profitability
Household Products $ 4894 $ 4723 $§ 4423
Personal Care 322.5 155.5 127.7
Totat segment profitabllity 811.6 627.8 570.0
General corporate and other expenses {104.9) (111.5) {128.9}
Acquisition inventory vahuation {27.5) - -
Amortization of intangibles {14.0) (5.4) 5.3}
Intarest and other financiat items {192.0) {76.7) [79.2)
Tota) eamings before income taxes $ 4732 $ 4352 $ 3566
Depreciation and Amortization
Household Products $ 670 $ 665 § 658
Personal Care 59.4 42,2 43.0
Total segment depreciation 126.4 108.7 108.8
Corporate 14.8 6.3 8.7
Total depreciation and amortization $ 1413 $ 1150 $ 1175
Total Assets
Housshold Products $1,505.5 $1,474.4
Personal Care 1,066.3 664.1
Total segment assets 2,5711.8 21385
Comporate 375.3 724.0
Goodwill and other intangible assets 2,859.6 663.2
Tolal assets $5,816.7 $3,525.7
Capital Expenditures
Household Products $ 793 $ 542 $ 487
Personal Care 78.9 341 37.5
Total segment capital expenditures 158.2 88.3 86.2
Corporate 1.8 0.3 B.7
Total capital expenditures $ 160.0 $ 886 $ 949
Geographic segment information on a legal entity basis:
2008 2007 2006
MNet Sales to Customers
United States $2,207.8 $1,561.4 $1.4745
Intemational 2,123.2 1.803.7 1,602.4
Total net sales  * $4,5510 £3,365.1 $3.076.9
Long-Lived Assets
United States $ 5918 $ 541.4
Germary 136.8 137.8
Other Intemational 1917 151,86

Total long-fived assets $ 9203 $ 8309
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The Company's International net sales are derived from customers in Supplemental product information is presented below for net sales:

numerous courntries, with sales o customers in Canada representing
5.4%, 4.5% end 4.5% and sales to customers in Japan representing 2008 2007 2006

3.4%, 4.4% and 5.0% of the Company’s total sales in 2008, 2007 and Net Sales
2006, respectively. Sales to customers in all other single foreign coun- Alkaling batiesios $1,490.1 $1.461.0 $1,338.0
tries represented less than 5% of the Company’s total sales for each of Carbon zine batteries 2052 248.9 2agn
the three years ended September 30. Other batteries and 750.0 664.5 566.9
. lighting products
Wet Shave 1,085.0 983.8 929.8
Skin Care 3641
Ferninine Cara 2226
Infant Care 185.0 - -
Total net sales $4,331.0 $3,365.1 $3,076.9

19. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION - (UNAUDITED}

The results of any single quarter are not necessarily indicative of the Company’s results for the full yeas, Net eamings of the Company arq significantly
impacted in the first quarter by the additional battery product sales volume associated with the December holiday season, and for fiscal 2008 and
beyond, in the second and third quarters by seasonal sun care shiprnents. The fourth quarter of 2008 also included higher hurricane-relited shipmenis
and early holiday season buy-in as discussed in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Conditions.

First Second Third Fourth
Fiscal 2008
Net sales $1,189.9 $ 951.0 $1,066.7 $1,1234
Gross profit 536.2 457.8 500.0 534.7
Net samings 102.6 60.9 66.7 §9.1
Basic earnings per share . $ 179 $ 1.06 $ 116 s 17
Diluted earnings per share s 174 $ 103 $ 13 S 167

Items increasing/{decreasing} not eamings:

Acquisition inventory valuation, net of tax $ (155 $ N0 $ - 5 -

Integration costs, net of tax (3.7} (2.7 (1.9) (3.1)
Prowvisions for restructuring and related ¢osts, net of tax {1.5} (0.2) - (0.3}
Adiustmonts to prior years' tax accruals - - (4.0 29
First Second Third Fourth
Fiscal 2007
Net sales $ 959.2 $ 7309 $ 800.0 $ 8750
Gross profit 454.2 346.3 3785 425.7
Net eamings 122.3 66.6 62.5 70.0
Basic earnings per share $ 2.16 $ 1.18 $ 1.40 3 1.23
Diluted earnings per share $ 208 $ 114 $ 108 $ 119
Items increasing/(decreasing) net pamings:
Prosdgions for restructuring and retated costs, net of tax g (23 3 PO 5 (23 $  (4.8)
Adjustments to prior years' tax accruals - - 35 4.4
Tax benefils recognized refated 1o prior years' losses - - 8.3 -
- - 9.7

Defarred tax benefit due to statutory rate change -
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Cargill Animal Nutrition

R. David Hoover®
Chairmnan, President and Chief
Executive Officer, Ball Corporation

John C. Hunter®
Retired Chairmean, Presidert and
Chief Executive Officer, Sciutia, Inc.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters
Energizer Holdings, Inc.
533 Manyville University Dr.
St. Louts, Missouri 63141
{314} 985-2000
WWW.energizer.com

Date and State of Incorporation
September 23, 1999 - Missour

Fiscal Year End
Septernber 30

Shareholders

On Septomber 30, 2008, there were
spproxdmately 12,360 shareholders
of rcord.

Independent Accountarts
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
St. Louis, Missouri

Annual Meseting

Tha Gompany's annual meoting
of shareholders is schoduled for
January 26, 2009, at 3:00 p.m, at
Energizer's World Headquarters,
533 Maryvilia University Drive,

St. Louis, Missouri 63141,

Common Stock Information

The table below sets for the fiscal
quarter indicated the reported high
and low sale prices of the Company's
common stock, as reported on the
New York Stock Exchange

Fiscal 2008 High Low
First Chuarer 11980 9920
Second Quarter 1325 8504
Therd Quarter 9385 7125
Fourth Quarter 9000 8635

Dividends
To date, the Sompany has not deckned
nor paid any cash dividend.

SEC Form 10-K

Shareholders may receive a copy of
the Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission
on Form 10-K free of charge by
writing or cafling the Irnvestor
Relations Department at Energizer's
corporate headquarters, as listed
above or by retrieving this intormation
from the Company’s website,
www.energizer.com.

Coda of Ethics

The Company has adepted a code
of ethics that is applicable to &l

of its direclors and employees.
including the Chief Executive Officer,
Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Cfficer, and Controfler, Tha
Compary's ¢oda of sthics has been
posted on the Company's website
at www.engrgizer.com.

Officer Certifications

As roquired by Sections 302 and
906 of the Sarbanes Cndey Act

of 2002, the Company has filed
certifications of its Chiefl Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer
with the Securities and Exchange
Cormmission as exhibits 1o its Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the period
ended September 30, 2008. In
additicn, the Chief Executive Cfficer
has certified to the New York Stock
Exchango {*NYSE") that he is not
awarp of any vidlations by the
Company of the NYSE corporate
governance listing standards.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Continertal Stock Transfer & Trust
Company ts Energizer's stock transfer
egent and registrar and maintains
the Company’s sharncholder records,
Shareholders neading information
ahaut account reconds, stock
certilicates and change of address
should contact:

Continental Stock Transfer

& Trust Company

17 Battery Place South, 8th Floor
Mew York, NY 10004

(888} 500-5580

Financial Community Information
Inquiries from institutional investors,
financial analysts, registered
representatives, portiolio managers
and individual shareholders should
be directed to Investor Relations at
Erergizer's corporate headguarters
listod above.
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